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ITEM NO.1:

FY 2007 BUDGET (C.C. 06-31 and 06-49)

2
3

CPAIR KANE:

(Gavel).

I'd like to call to order the

4

Council's Budget and Finance Committee meeting

5

for Wednesday, March 22nd, 2006.
Good morning, Members.

6

For the record

7

we have in attendance Members Pontanilla,

8

Molina, Mateo, Anderson, Carroll, Kane.

9

is Members Tavares, as well as -- I believe the

Excused

10

Vice-Chair, Mr. Hokama, and Member Johnson, I

11

believe, are on their way so they should be here

12

shortly.

13

she mayor may not come depending on how she

14

feels, so she's excused as well.

15

Member Tavares is not feeling well so

Before we get started, Members, just a

16

few things.

17

presence of our Mayor, Alan Arakawa, who will

18

provide us with some opening remarks.

19

stated that he'll just give us general, and then

20

we can rely on our Budget Director to start

21

going into the bump and grind of our day-to-day

22

meeting schedule, which will be going for the

23

next, approximately, six weeks.

24

looking forward to that.

25

I wanted to first acknowledge the

And he

So we're

I'd like to introduce who the people
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1

will be here to serve the Comwittee.

2

from Corporation Counsel, Ms. Traci Fujita

3

Villarosa and, of course, our Budget Director,

4

Mr. Lloyd Ginoza.

5

we're going to have Camille Sakamoto as our

6

Committee Secretary and as our Legislative and

7

Legal Analyst we have serving the Committee,

8

it's going to be Lance Taguchi at our No.1

9

spot.

We have

We have -- from our staff

We'll have Gayle Revels right there

10

assisting him at the No. 2 spot and our Legal

11

Analyst will be David Raatz.

12

all of you in advance for what we're about to go

13

through.

14

So I want to thank

Members, I want to also take this

15

opportunity to thank you in advance.

16

going to be dealing with a lot of time and a lot

17

of energy and focus on our Mayor's proposed

18

budget that we did receive on March 15th as

19

required by Charter and we're going to thank the

20

Mayor for providing that budget to us.

21

We're

Obviously this is more than just a

22

document of numbers, Members, but this basically

23

represents for the next year from July through

24

June of next year what our community looks like

25

and looks to continue doing.
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So I want to, again, thank the Mayor for

1

2

his proposals and we are here, Members,

3

basically to achieve the goal of reviewing this

4

proposed budget and then pass the budget in

5

Capital Program with or without amendments on

6

first and then second reading, which is the

7

final reading by the Charter's requirement of

8

May 31st of this year.
So we have a lot of work ahead of us

9
10

and, again, Members, I want to take this

11

opportunity to thank you folks in advance for

12

being here and getting ready to work.
With that, Mayor Arakawa, thank you.

13
14
15
16
17

18

Please proceed with your comments.
l~~YOR

ARAKAWA:

Good morning and thank you, Chair

Kane, Council members.
This morning I'm down here more just to
give you a very, very brief overview and to
thank you in advance for the work that you're

20

doing and you're going to be doing.

21

in those chairs for many years, I know that it's

22

a very long, tiring process and going over

23

numbers can be very, very difficult and

24

frustrating at times.

25

Having sat

A couple of general comments and I'm
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1

keeping them general because you Hill be able to

2

have each of the departments before you.

3

going to be trying to cooperate as best vJe can.

We are

4

And I Hill ask you if you have questions

5

for the specific departments, please ask them to

6

the directors of the departments.

7

Lloyd to knoH all of the anSHers because the "Jay

8

this actually Horks is Lloyd -- He sort of

9

compiled everything, but the real data gathering

Don't expect

10

is done in stages throughout the various

11

departments.

12

You knoH, it starts at the very bottom

13

Hhere He start looking at Hhat He need from the

14

departments and day-to-day operations; and then

15

their supervisors look at it; and then the

16

division heads look at it; the department heads

17

look at it, and it Horks its Hay up.

18

So a lot of the details Hill be Hith the

19

department heads themselves and I Hould like to

20

stress that they're the real experts.

21

division heads, if you have questions on a

22

specific division, take the time and the

23

opportunity to actually get the people that are

24

Horking Hith the specific area to be able to

25

give you the details.

And their

And He'll be very happy
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1

to provide access to those specific people for

2

you.

3

the County building and we don't get down to the

4

actual working field a lot of times.

Lloyd, as the Budget Director, we're up in

Okay?

In looking at this year's budget overall

5
6

and looking at the general economy of the

7

County, I'd like to point out one glaringly

8

obvious fact.

9

property in Maui, we're going to find that the

If we look at all the real

10

assessed values have risen dramatically.

As a

11

matter of fact,

12

values exactly the same as we'd have this year,

13

you'd have additional revenue of over

14

$86 million.

if we were to leave the assessed

Okay?

And we feel from Administration that

15
16

that's too much taxes -- tax increase to be able

17

to expect our community to absorb in one year.

18

So we have sent you a proposal that's asking you

19

to look at not taking the maximum amount of

20

value that we can or revenue that we can from

21

the community but to reassess some of the

22

various categories and tax brackets for the

23

people in the community.

24

will be going over those various tax brackets

25

today.

And I believe Kalbert
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In general what we try to do is to have

1

2

some tax relief for the community but also to be

3

very cognizant of the fact that we have sow£

4

very, very challenging infrastructure

5

repair/replacement situations that we have to

6

I-'lOrk with, you know.

7

When you build a new building, a lot of

8

times we don't consider what it takes to repair

9

and maintain those buildings long-term and we're

10

in the process right now where we actually have

11

to put in a lot of money to be able to keep up

12

with the maintenance, especially in the

13

Wastewater system.

14

Using that as an example, you'll find

15

that even though the Wastewater system was

16

basically constructed with federal money, now

l7

the County is actually having to go in and we're

18

going to have to be able to fund the repair and

19

replacement of a lot of these systems.

20

guesstimating

21

$25 million a year to maintain the existing

22

system.

23

of our major structures.

'+-

l~

So we're

will cost close to 20,

And that's going to be true with a lot

24

So a lot of the initial value that was

25

put in when the system is new has worn off and
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1

we're actually having to come in and we're going

2

to have to put in a lot of money to maintain a

3

lot of these structures.

4

So in using the -- this year's budget

5

because we have such a high amount of revenue

6

that is anticipated, we have put in a lot of

7

money to try and get into the basic repair and

8

replacement of a lot of the structures that we

9

have within the County.

10

This is not something we're going to be

11

able to avoid.

12

or two but it will catch up eventually.

13

Wastewater system, we've delayed a lot of these

14

repairs because costs were too high for our

15

normal budgets and by default we're just passing

16

on the necessary repair and replacements to the

17

next year.

18

have to bite the bullet and we're suggesting

19

that this year is one of those years that we

20

should actually start really doing that

21

seriously in looking at what the real costs are.

22

You can push it off for a year
And our

And there's going to be a time we

And I would ask you to ask our

23

department what those real costs are because

24

year after year, you know, they come in with

25

budget items in the hundreds of millions of
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1

dollars of CIP and we have to cut it down

2

because the amount of bond float that we want to

3

be able to handle and the financing is much more

4

limited and you can only put those off so long.

5

Even this year we can't cover them all,

6

but we want to start making some serious

7

attempts at getting to a more realistic

8

expenditure in the repair and maintenance of a

9

lot of these facilities.

10

And I ask you to

please take a look at that.
In preparing for the future, we are

11

12

looking at, for instance, purchasing a piece of

13

property in Haiku for a future public utilities

14

area -- fire station, police station, possibly

15

other uses.

16

looking for property to be able to do a fire

17

station.

18

come up and it's 27 acres for about 3.2 million

19

we think now.

20

asking for about 3.2 and it will

21

a little bit as we negotiate.

22

consideration that this is a piece that's

23

available now for this price.

24

piece that's available; it's not the only piece

25

we should really consider purchasing for future

I actually had the fire department

This particular property happened to

We thought it was 3, but they're
it will vary

But do take into

It's not the only
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1

developments in areas that are growing very

2

strongly.
We were on Molokai and the Molokai Fire

3
4

Station in Kaunakakai was one that we've been

5

working on for a number of years and so we're

6

actually -- last year we put in the design

7

money, this year we're actually putting the

8

money in for construction.
And in future years we're actually going

9

10

to have to look at this County building.

11

actually deferred trying to build a new building

12

in this area this year because a lot of these

13

other areas, I think, are more important.

14

be cognizant of the fact that at some time we're

15

going to have to really start looking at the

16

County building as well and that will probably

17

start next year.

18

We

But

Overall, the revenue stream is very good

19

again.

20

$86 million if you don't do any tax adjustment,

21

but I

22

after all, when it comes out is your budget and

23

all we're doing is making recommendations to you

24

from the Administration.

25

ask you to take this as that kind of a

I'll point out that it's about

recommend that you do.

The County budget,

So I would take
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1

recommendation.

2

trying to be able to get all of the departments

3

functioning at the level we want them to.

4

You know, cooperatively we are

There are quite a bit of added

5

personnel.

6

personnel requests seriously.

7

personnel requested we believe will help the

8

community in the long run, but you also need to

9

review and make sure that you're comfortable

10
11

I ask you to review each of the
We redid and the

with the personnel that we're requesting.
I am -- as Mayor, I'll be available for

12

any kind of questioning that you may have

13

personally if you want.

14

me know and I'll come down and I'll answer the

15

questions directly.

16

be here, Lloyd will be here, any of our staff

17

that you need will be available for you while

IS

you do your deliberations.

19

I ask you to just let

The department heads will

And we truly want this to be a

20

cooperative venture in creating the County

21

budget and, again, I'll stress the County budget

22

is really the Council's budget.

23

Administration's budget, so please take a look

24

at what we're recommending.

25

It's not the

Most of the costs you're going to find
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1

are in fixed costs.

The increases are in fixed

2

costs and we really cannot get around so take a

3

look at some of those.

4

seem big, the salary increases, the insurance --

5

all of those kind of things did go up.

6

costs have gone up.

7

we want to run the operations, we're going to

8

have to spend the money for it.

9

have way around it.

Even though the numbers

The fuel

So those fixed costs

if

We don't really

If you can find ways around

10

it, we'd be more than happy to entertain it.

11

you can find ways to be able to cut some of the

12

expenditures, we'd be more than happy to

13

entertain it.

14

If

We'd like to work with you in this

15

budget.

16

members you've asked me to put in in the various

17

areas and the communities asked me to put in,

18

we've actually put into the budget for

19

consideration.

20

going to end for now.

Many of the items that as Council

So take a look at those and I'm

21

Again, my offer at any point if you want

22

me to come down personally, I'll be glad to come

23

down and have discussion with you and express my

24

opinion on what the -- why -- what, how, and why

25

we've created the budget for that particular
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1

item.

And, again, we offer to you any of our

2

Administration that you want to be able to ask

3

questions of.

4

possible during this process.

We want to be as cooperative as
Okay?

And I know that it's a long, long

5

6

journey to do the budget, so I give you my

7

condolences in advance and I hope that all of

8

you have purchased heaters for under your desks

9

because I know that the heater was one of the

10

most beneficial things I had when I was sitting

11

where Michelle is sitting right now because it

12

gets pretty cold 10:00, 11:00 o'clock at night.

13
14
15

So thank you very much and I'd entertain
any questions that you may have.
CHAIR Kfu"E:

Thank you, Mayor.

16

Members, any questions for our Mayor?

17

Member Anderson?

18
19
20
21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you, Mayor,
explanation.

for that opening

It's much appreciated.

I'm a little confused, though, because

22

on the 15th of this month the Water Resource

23

Committee passed a resolution requesting that

24

the Administration do not use the well water at

25

Hamakuapoko Wells 1 and 2 for public drinking
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1

purposes.

2

And in the paper that day, the next day,

3

you were quoted as saying that you had no

4

intention of using that water for public

5

drinking purposes; yet in the budget that came

6

out that very day, you have $750,000 for the

7

Hamakuapoko wells, as well as $250,000

8

designated for treatment of the nitrates

9

design -- apparently it's design money for a

10

nitrate removal facility.
So can you explain that?

11

12

I~YOR

ARAKAWA:

I'd be glad to.

If you remember, first of all, the

13
14

Hamakua wells and putting in the pipeline, we

15

really didn't have to go back to the public and

16

we didn't have to come back to Council because

17

it was already preapproved.

18

We did so because we wanted to have

19

discussion on it and what we actually proposed

20

to the community was six options that we were

21

reviewing and we were asking for input on those

22

options.

23

were going to use the \o/ater for anyone way or

24

form.

25

want to connect the Upcountry system to the

We didn't have in specific that we

Ii/hat I have been saying very loudly is we
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1

2

lower system.
Now, one of the options that we have was

3

to be able to bring the water to the upper

4

system, put it in the ditch and trade water with

5

the HC&S and that's an option that, you know, we

6

feel that if the community is feeling

7

uncomfortable, even though all the water that we

8

process meet all of the Department of Health

9

standards, if they're really uncomfortable with

10

11

it, then that's an option we can work with.
The Water Department in trying to do

12

this, we still want to connect up the system.

13

But if the Council chooses and is recommending

14

to us another option, which would be to remove

15

the nitrates and use the water, we're perfectly

16

willing to do that, as well, but we don't have

17

to if we don't want to.

18

And the nitrate level, again, when we

19

start getting into these areas, it gets into a

20

very dangerous area because we have -- actually

21

have been using water in the past that we've had

22

to treat and, indeed, almost all of the

23

treatment plants are there because we're

24

removing some contaminants.

25

treatment systems that we do, all the chemicals

And all the
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1

that we add, all of those things are to adjust

2

the water system.

3

it's to be able to kill

4

have to be very careful on how we want to adjust

5

it.

6

And when we add chlorine,
contaIT~nants.

So you

The actual use of the water from the

7

H'poko system, we can get just as much value by

8

trading the water so that that particular water

9

will be utilized for the cane company and we

10

take water that's not from the wells.

11

feeling, and we discussed, is that's an option

12

that we can use.

13

consumption, we don't have to.

14

that's the direction the Council is going,

15

that's fine by me.

16

And my

Not actually use it for human
So if that is --

We put the money in the budget because

17

we were doing the budget prior to this.

18

community asked us to look at nitrate removal

19

because they were concerned about it.

20

going to put the water in the Upcountry system

21

as irrigation water, we don't have to do the

22

nitrate removal.

23

removal, we needed the money in the budget.

24

if we don't need to do it, then you can take it

25

out of the budget, that's fine, or we would

The

If we're

If we had to do the nitrate
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1

lapse that money.

At this particular time, I

2

believe you can just remove that if we're not

3

going to be using that water for human

4

consumption.

That's fine.

5

From my point, as an administrator, as a

6

person -- you know, I've never understood why we

7

actually -- why the Water Department actually

S

dug the wells in the middle of the cane field

9

because I felt that you -- it doesn't make any

10

sense to begin with but that wasn't an option

11

that I had to make a choice on.

12

As the Mayor, I have to take what's

13

already given to me, which was a system that's

14

already approved and pipes already purchased and

15

I've got to do something with it.

16

there.

17

anticipation of whatever the Council wanted to

IS

do, we wanted to have options.

19

point if you want to remove it, I'm fine with

20

removing it.

21

So it was

It's in the budget because we

in

But at this

We do want to connect the two systems

22

together because it makes a whole lot of sense

23

and we do want

24

the wells that were there because we actually

25

can trade water with the cane company and have a

we don't want to just waste
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1

benefit for the community and that's money

2

already expended.

3

COu~CILMEMBER

4

CHAIR KANE:

ANDERSON:

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

6

COUNCIU1EMBER PONTANILLA:

7

CFJeIR

9

Thank you, Mayor.

Any other questions for the Mayor?

5

8

Okay.

~ffi:

Yeah.

Oh, I'm sorry.
Mr. Pontanilla followed by Mr. Mateo.

COm~CILMEMBER

PONTANILLA:

It's not a question but

10

comment in regards to the Mayor's opening

11

statement.

12

I believe that, you know, coming from a

13

company that always talk about infrastructure

14

improvements, especially in the

15

repair/maintenance side, I, you know, I reviewed

16

the budget the last couple of days in regards to

17

the improvements that is required for this

18

County, especially this County building.

19

You're pretty happy that, you know, some

20

of the things that are being proposed will

21

ensure that, No.1, this building, especially

22

our chiller and our air conditioning system, you

23

know, continue to work properly.

24
25

On the Public Works side, I do see a lot
of money in regards to the Wastewater, the road
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1

system, drainage.

These are things that are

2

important for people here in our community,

3

especially trying to (inaudible) the plant at

4

Kahului Treatment Plant.

I believe in that.

The other issue that -- you know, not

5
6

issue but proposal that is being proposed is the

7

Kaunakakai fire station.

8

Molokai, you know, every year, you know, it is a

9

big concern in regards to the firefighters.

You know, going to

10

And, you know, we should head towards

11

constructing the new fire station on Molokai.
I like the idea as far as the Haiku fire

12

13

station.

14

equipment closer to the residents Upcountry,

15

especially in the remote area.

16

At least it's a proposal to bring fire

So thank you for your comments this morning.

17

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

18

CHAIR KANE:

19
20
21

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo?

COUNCILMEMBER

~ATEO:

Chairman, thank you very much.

Mr. Mayor, my question has to do

22

primarily with the proposed Real Property Tax

23

reductions and it is not

24

based on how you derived at, you know, the

25

reductions.

it is not a question
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Hy question has to do with your

1

2

Administration's continued ability in looking at

3

the actual or the larger problems, which would

4

be the continued escalation of the assessments.
So while we're looking at a reduction in

5
6

various classifications, is your Administration

7

also taking a look at what can be done in terms

8

of considerations of a cap or other means of

9

addressing the escalating assessments every

10
11
12

year?
~~YOR

ARAKAWA:

Okay.

Thank you for the question,

Council member.
There are a lot of issues that I believe

13

14

need to be addressed when we're talking about

15

taxes.

Excuse

IT£.

Now, when we're looking at taxes right

16
17

now, the assessments will go up because

18

properties that are being sold are there.

19

have nothing to do with the assessments as an

20

Administration except to accept numbers that

21

are -- that are real and those will continue to

22

go up.

23

I actually believe

So we

you know, we sent

24

to the Council a definition of "Agriculture."

25

We've had discussions for years about trying to
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1

split Gentlemen Estates and real agriculture.

2

So if you accept the definition or create

3

some -- as a starting point, we sent it down.

4

If you create a definition, then you can

5

separate the two categories and create another

6

tax bracket.

7

guys really need to work on, but I'm not going

8

to dictate to the Councilor try to pretend to

9

dictate to the Council.

And I believe that's something you

That's at your pace.

I

10

kind of hoped that you would get that definition

11

down so we could separate out the two categories

12

this year.

13

Gentlemen Estates you can tax it at a higher

14

level.

15

If we can do that, then a lot of the

We're also looking at a lot of the

16

different properties.

17

really carefully examine what is going to be

18

housing for local residents versus housing that

19

is primarily for investment purposes.

20

perhaps housing at 2 million or some number like

21

that, you would put it in a different tax

22

category.

23

I do think you need to

And

So we could actually try and look at the

24

categories, what is Residential tax and what is

25

a Luxury tax.

Sorr~

of those kind of things I
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1

think you really need to consider as a Council

2

and I would, you know, I would appreciate that.

3

We went through and we were trying to

4

see if we could put some kind of a relief for

5

the homeowners because we've been hearing that

6

homeowners can't really suffer through tax

7

increase, tax increase, tax increase.

8

this year's budget we actually have taken the

9

rate down to where there's no out-of-pocket

10

So in

increase for homeowners.

11

And we're also asking that you consider

12

looking at the reduction of the Circuit Breaker

13

number from 3 to 2 and a half, even though that

14

would take place, you know, next year, not this

15

year.

16

it next year and it delays one more year.

17

also, looking at some relief for renters.

18

If we don't do it this year, then we do
And,

So last year we tried to come out with a

19

proposal to do homeowners' exemption for people

20

that are renting units.

21

and this year, there was supposed to have been

22

discussion and to try and come up with some way

23

to be able to help the renter and not relieve

24

the tax so much from people that are puny

25

business investments.

And between last year

That didn't occur so we
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1

didn't know how to really work on that issue

2

because we raised it last year.
So those are the kinds of ways I think

3
4

we need to look at to be able to balance out the

5

fairness issue and how we're assessing taxes.

6

don't want to, you know, overstep my position

7

and tell the Council, you know, these are the

8

areas that you guys need to work on, but I think

9

it's areas that you need to consider to be able

10

to balance out the taxes and what's fair in the

11

community.

12

I do firmly believe that the community

13

cannot keep standing all these huge increases

14

without some kind of way to be able to break it

15

down.

16

the rate reduction, the homeowner exemption

17

increases -- you can balance it out and we have

18

put forth a proposal to try and balance it out

19

so at least we're protecting the homeowners.

20

I

And the system that we have right now

And we're hopeful that the Council, when

21

you review it -- and that's why I pointed out

22

that the additional revenue is, you know,

23

$86 million if you don't touch it at all.

24

you realize that there's flexibility in there to

So

be able to do some adjustments to the categories
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1

that you feel need to be addressed.

2

And I would welcome any kind of

3

suggestion because we just -- we took a shot at

4

our recommendations knowing full well the

5

Council really needs to review and come out with

6

recommendations.

7

different from ours probably, but at least you

8

have an idea where we're starting from and then

9

you can adjust and we'll be happy with those

10
11

adjustments.

14

15

16
17

18

MATEO:

COUNCI~ffiMBER

Thank you, Mr. Mayor.

Thank you, Chairman.

12
13

And, you know, they'll be

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Mr. Molina.
MOLINA:

COu~CILMEMBER

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Good morning, Mr. Mayor.

Thank you for

being here.
First of all, I appreciate you putting

19

the Haiku land purchase in your budget.

20

that's been one of my priorities

21

MiWOR ARl'RAWA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

23

For me,

We've heard.
for the district.

One proposal that stemmed my curiosity

24

was the improvement for the County morgue at

25

$4 million.
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1

Prior to the consideration of

2

$4 million, were there other alternatives you

3

had been considering and can you give some

4

comment on that aside from -- you know, are we

5

at a real critical situation with the County

6

morgue at this time?

7
B

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

yes, I believe "'le are.
Councilwoman Johnson brought this issue

9

10

The answer to your last question is,

up to me and in discussion I had not realized
how serious it was.

We actually went down and

12

looked at it.

We actually do not have adequate

13

space at the hospital morgue, so people that

14

have passed away are actually being stored with

15

ice put on them and conditions that we don't

16

want to really discuss in public.

17

that you take a look at it yourself.

But I suggest

18

Realizing that this is a County

19

responsibility, the Police department suggested

20

that there is a building that is coming up for

21

sale that we should really seriously consider

22

purchasing as a morgue because this is a real

23

problem.

24
25

I, for one, having gone through some
pretty bad experiences with people that I like
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1

having passed away, do not want to see anybody

2

have to go through these kinds of experiences

3

because of inadequacy within the morgue.
We should be looking at a new facility

4
5

because the hospital facility is definitely

6

inadequate.

7

tremendously and their facility is very, very

8

inadequate.

9

convinced that it is very inadequate so that's

The population has grown

In talking with their staff, I'm

10

why we've put it in the budget.

11

glamorous thing to have to do, but it's a

12

responsible thing to do.

It's not a

I recommend that you do take a look at

13
14

the morgue and go down and talk to the people

15

that are actually dealing with the citizens that

16

have passed away and get a feel for this because

17

it's an area that needs to be done.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

19

20
21
22

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Any further questions, Mr. Carroll, you

have any questions at this time?

23

Thank you.

24

The Chair recognizes Member Johnson.

25

Glad you made it safely from Lahaina.
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1

2
3
4

5

Thank you.
Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER

F~DERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

I just

had a follow-up question.
Mr. Mayor, you said that the way you've

6

formulated the tax rates that there will be

7

no -- no out-of-pocket increase for homeowners.

8

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

Yes.

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So even if someone's

10

assessed valuation has gone up over 100 percent,

11

they're not going to -- they're not going to

12

feel it in their tax bill?

13

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

We looked at the rate and we -- the

14

way we adjusted the rate, we're hoping that this

15

is less -- the increase should be less because

16

of the rate reduction.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

increase?

19

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

No.

It should be no increase

20

out-of-pocket.

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

22

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

23
24
25

It will still be an

No increase.

Overall.

And there might be a few exceptions but
our intent is to have no increase in Homeowners.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.
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1

11AYOR ARAKAWA:

Yeah.

2

exceptions.

3

there may be.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

Thank you.

6
7

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

But, again, there may be some

I don't know of any exceptions but

Okay.

Thank you.

Member Johnson,

I know you missed his

8

opening remarks and that's what we're doing the

9

Q&A on but go ahead.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

I just

this is just

11

a follow-up on the question that Counci1member

12

Anderson asked and this would be in regard to

13

some of the people that are not in the Homeowner

14

category where they are the actual people that

15

are renting out their units.

16

I've received several calls from people

17

and I wonder how you would suggest -- and I know

18

that you have some things in the budget, but

19

because we're trying to be equitable and because

20

we also don't want to impact those individuals

21

that are getting that rental increase due to

22

the, you know, increase on the individual who

23

owns the home, could you explain a little bit

24

further -- and I apologize if you've already

25

done this, but could you explain a little bit
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1

about your measure for giving relief to those

2

individuals who do rent out their horne

3

long-term.

4

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

Well, last year we'd actually

5

proposed to do a homeovmers' exemption for

6

people that were renting long-term.

7

The Council said that they would take a

8

look at it between last year and this year and

9

we hope that that's a proposal the Council will

10

entertain consideration of.

11

If people are renting long-term -- if

12

you want to give some benefit for people that

13

are renting, which is a very large proportion of

14

our population of non-homeowners, I personally

15

feel, and we tried last year to

16

relief that should be given.

17

that there's

So the homeowners' exemption -- what we

18

were proposing last year was basically relieve

19

the tax burden from the people that were renting

20

long-term.

21

be some work on who would actually benefit and

22

how you would make sure that the landlord pass

23

that on to the homeowners and that was an area

24

that I'd hoped the Council would work on between

25

last year and this year.

But there has to be -- there has to

I still think that
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1

that's something that's necessary to be able to

2

work with.

3

And, again, vJhat I've pointed out

4

several times already is that if we don't do any

5

adjustment, there's about $86 million increase

6

in the budget.

7

budget, the system, to be able to adjust any of

8

these categories Council sees fit.

9

recommend that you do take a quick look at it

There is flexibility within the

So I would

10

and try and adjust it in the areas that you want

11

to relief -- relieve the horne -- the tax burden

12

to make it fair.

13

We recommend

we recommended not going

14

too far dovm because we want to be able to do

15

improvements to repair/maintenance, so we think

16

that's necessary, as well.

17

up on a lot of repair and maintenance that has

18

been put off and put off and put off and it gets

19

to the point where you can't put it off anymore.

20

And we have to catch

It's always convenient for

21

Administration to say, well, the next guys will

22

handle it.

23

from the last guys so we got to -- at some point

24

somebody's got to be responsible for doing the

25

repair and maintenance and that's why we're

But we're the next guys, you know,
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1

saying, let's look realistically at these costs

2

because they're there and sooner or later, you

3

know, you run into dangerous situations because

4

you've ignored it and ignored it because you

5

don't put enough money into it and then it

6

becomes a catastrophe for the community and I

7

don't want that situation on our 'datch.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And 'dith regard specifically

9

to the renters because I think that's been one

10

of our concerns, too, about 'dill any kind of a

11

tax benefit be passed through to the renter.

12

Had you taken a look at maybe additional

13

rental assistance because I know we're at max

14

for Section 8.

15

that you would recommend that we take a look at?

16

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

So is that one of the things

One of the proposals that Council

17

came up with last year was to put money for

18

rental assistance and you were supposed to

19

develop a program to utilize that money.

20

I believe right nOH He're trying to take

21

it so that He can actually use that money to

22

existing programs, but He have to remove the

23

condition that Council put on it because you

24

Here going to do a program.

25

I think this is a good Hay to go.

The
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1

existing Section 8 and the 11EO Housing Program

2

and

3

rental assistance program work.

4

to put money into rental assistance, I think

5

that's one way that would really help a lot of

6

people.

SOIDE

of these others that we have work.

The

So if you want

I can say that past history -- because

7
8

we have I think 1,400 families on Section 8 and

9

about 1,200 families that are going through the

10

homeless programs.

11

helped right now and the need is definitely

12

there so I would actually appreciate a lot of

13

money being put into this area.

14

existing programs and you can add to that and

15

we'll try and work with it, but I think that's a

16

good area to work with.

17

COTJNCILMEHBER JOHNSON:

Those people are being

Okay.

But we have the

Thank you.

18

And one final question, Hr. Chair.

19

And this is in regard to -- I believe

20

it's the acceleration of the project in Lahaina,

21

which would be the improvements to the sewage

22

plant.

23

Is that something

I know you've

24

increased dramatically the amount of money in

25

the lilastewater Fund for those improvements.
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1

Will that take care of the K0jority of

2

improvements to give us the sewage capacity that

3

we need and can that be realistically

4

accomplished within 18 months?

5

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

It can be realistically accomplished.

6

We can -- we can definitely start it within the

7

18 months.

8

absolutely completed but the budgeting system

9

doesn't see the completion, they just -- it's

You know, not all projects will be

10

the starting date.

11

projects we can start.

12

So we believe most of these

And knowing the circumstances in the

13

community for construction, labor and companies,

14

there's going to be some delays on somE of these

15

projects.

16

most -- we can start it and we should start it.

17

But we definitely feel that we

As a matter of fact, we think it's

18

necessary

19

otherwise we will run out of capacity.

20

have to be able to start working on the

21

repair/maintenance and the

22

can work on it to answer your question.

23

24
25

absolutely necessary to start it,

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So we

yes, we definitely

Thank you very much.

AppreCiate it, Mr. Mayor.
CR~IR

KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Johnson.
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1

The Chair recognizes Mr. Hokama.

2

Good morning.

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

Any further questions for the Mayor and

his opening remarks?
Mr. Pontanilla.

6

7

Good morning, Chairman.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

This is in regards to Real Property Tax.

8
9

When you were doing the -- I guess "proposal"

10

under reduction of the Real Property Tax, did

11

the Administration take a look at the

12

possibility of increasing the home exemption

13

rates or exemption rates for most other

14

categories rather than reducing the tax rate

15

itself?

16

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

You can do it either way.

Actually,

17

it's either/or, as I stated before.

18

the way the system is, you can balance it off

19

either by reducing rates or raising home

20

exemption.

21

You can --

Now, to get to the point where you're

22

doing the home exemption for

23

for instance, that we're doing homeowners' rate

24

reduction, you're going to have to go up quite a

25

bit in the homeowners' exemption and we feel

to the level,
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1

that it's better to reduce the rates than the

2

homeowners' exemption.

3

But either way, you accomplish almost

4

the same thing.

5

the Council doing homeowners' exemption versus

6

the rates.

7

better way.

8
9

So we would not be opposed to

We just think the rates are the

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

The final question that I have is in

10

regards to the amount of carryover/savings that

11

is being projected.

12

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

Can you explain?

The carryover/savings, I believe

13

we're very comfortable with the

14

carryover/savings and, as a matter of fact,

15

earlier this year we actually sent down a

16

proposal to the Council to try and spend some of

17

the money this year for purchasing police

18

vehicles.

19

So we sent down a supplemental budget

20

request to purchase vehicles this year for each

21

of the police officers to have better exposure

22

in the community of police vehicles and had the

23

discussion before this because we don't want --

24

we don't want to have too much carryover/savings

25

and the rate increases -- your tax rates being
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1

up so high because you're going to have a lot of

2

money to have to deal with.
I believe we're very, very safe with the

3
4

carryover rate right now.

5

you talk to any of the Bond Counsels, we're at

6

about 17, $18 million in carryover.

7

add on all of the special funds, we're close to

8

$30 million.

9

that we don't want to go too far above and we're

10
11

Fnd I believe that if

And if we

So I believe we're up to a level

also adding money to the Emergency Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12

Thank you for that.

The reason why I ask this

13

carryover/savings in regards to -- I think some

14

of this carryover/savings is sometimes

15

attributed to projects that we say we're going

16

to do in the fiscal year but we never did it.

17

Could this carryover/savings, you know,

18

projects that we intended to do are not being

19

done?

20

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

Well, understand that with the

21

process that we have right now there's going to

22

be some of that.

23

Every year just the fact that you have

24

carryover/savings means that you have

25

flexibility and you're adjusting some projects
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1

that get done and some that don't get done.

We

2

corne down to you to WDve money around during the

3

year, that's also part of the process.
So we're guesstimating at the beginning

4

5

of the year what projects we'll be able to

6

budget at a certain rate.

7

the projects, sometimes the bids are very

8

different from what we anticipate they'll be,

9

especially when you have a market the way we do.

When we actually bid

10

So the numbers, even though they seem larger,

11

the dollars actually buy a lot less.

12

we're starting to see larger numbers, buildings

l3

that used to cost us 1 million are costing us 3

14

and $4 million.

15

bigger -- the huge numbers.

16

So as

So don't be fooled by the

The total number of proj ects that vJe are

17

having adjustments on are probably about the

18

same.

19

projects than normal not being done or being

20

shifted around.

21

are because the dollars that we anticipate

22

having to spend are different from what the

23

actual bid corne in.

24
25

You're not seeing a whole lot more

But many of them, if they are,

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.
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1
2

3
4

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
Mr. Molina.

COUNCIU1EMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Mayor, question on Real Property

5

Tax, specifically on assessed valuations.

6

Looking at the Realtors' Association of Maui's

7

median price of a home, if I recall back in

8

September it was listed at roughly 780,000; come

9

December it's dropped down to about 725,000, and

10

just last month, February, it was projected at

11

just under 700,000.

12

So there seems to be a trend with the

13

prices of homes going down and the

14

Administration has determined that there's going

15

to be roughly an 8 percent increase, 8 to

16

10 percent increase in property valuation.

l7

Can you help, you know, help my

18

understanding of that because I guess one would

19

think that as home prices go down, valuations

20

may do the same.

21

help clear that up for me, I'd appreciate it.

22

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

So if you could just kind of

The home prices, they fluctuate.

And

23

depending on the type of housing on the market,

24

these things fluctuate month to month.

25

There tends to be a trend going down a
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1

little bit but we're also putting a lot more

2

product on the market.

3

construction that's going on right now is very

4

fast and furious.

5

there will be a lot more product on the market

6

and that will increase what we have as

7

inventory.

8

little bit.

So if you notice the

So we're anticipating that

So we anticipate this will go up a

But overall long-term, I think it's

9

10

going to sort of stabilize, come down very

11

slowly, not real fast,

12

four years and then we'll see what happens after

13

that.

14

for the next three or

But, no, I'm not anticipating large

15

spikes upward and we normally follow the

16

Mainland trend.

17

Mainland trend.

So we're looking at the

18

The actual gathering of data and the

19

analysis, I'd ask you to ask Kalbert and his

20

department because they come up with the actual

21

calculations on how they figure these things out

22

much more accurately than I do.

23

what I'm being told is what we should anticipate

24

as the margins that we're working with.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

But this is

Thank you.
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Thank you, Chairman.

1

2

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
further questions, Members?

3

&~y

4

Chair just has one question, Mayor.

If

5

you can, please, just clarify.

6

mention in your opening remarks the $3 million

7

for the Haiku property.

8

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

9

CHAIR KANE:

I know you

Yes.

So to put it in context, we're talking

10

about a Fiscal Year '07 budget.

11

would become available come July 1st.

12

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

13

CHAIR KANE:

So this monies

Yes.

Have you folks made arrangements to

14

somehow put that property on hold or to secure

15

it so that you can have that discussion and the

16

availability of money?

17

So help us understand that better

18

versus, you know, why the

19

didn't come down and ask for a current fiscal

20

year amendment to go ahead and pursue the

21

property.

22

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

23

CHAIR KFNE:

24

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

25

Ad~inistration

perhaps

Help us understand that.
Okay.

Thank you.
Actually, Dave DeLeon is working with

that project and we are talking with the owner
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1

of the property and to this point they've

2

indicated to us they're willing to wait until

3

July 1st for payment if we're going to acquire

4

the property.

5

Council as to whether you're to approve that

6

that.

But it has to be discussed in

But we will probably be -- be asking you

7

8

to increase that to 3.2 because that's current

9

offers that they have, rather than 3, which we

10

had originally talked about.
But the owners are -- have told us that

11

12

they are willing to wait, otherwise we would

13

have corne down with a budget amendment.

14
15

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.
Would you be able to provide the

16

Committee maybe some follow-up from the

17,

discussions between Mr. DeLeon and the ovmer

18

just to provide us some written documentation?

~

19

And that way we have something firm that

20

we can put the money on for that because I think

21

a lot of the members, you know, are looking

22

forward to that discussion to make sure that we

23

can secure that site.

24
25

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

We are -- I'll try -- I'll try

and acquire that
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1

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

2

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

and get you something in writing.

We are working with somebody that's not

3
4

living on the island so it's a little bit WDre

5

difficult.

We are

co~~unicating

back and forth.

But our indications are that they are

6
7

willing to wait.

We've explained to them our

8

process and we actually explained to them that,

9

you know, it's possible that we could come to

10

you with a supplemental budget and try and

11

acquire that property.
And if the Council so desires, we can

12

13
14

still do that.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

That is an option at this point.
Thank you.

And we'll make sure that we get a

15

16

follow-up letter up to you just to, you know,

17

confirm the discussion this morning.

18

you for that.

19

So thank

By the way, just a brief comment.

We

20

rely on your ability to negotiate back down to

21

$3 million, Mayor.

22

P~YOR

ARP_KAWA:

They actually have had offers of 3.2,

23

so it's going to be very difficult to get it

24

down.

25

CHAIR

K&~E:

Tell them it's a public service thing.
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1

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

MAYOR p2AKAWA:

4

For the public good.

CHAIR KANE:

6

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

Please.
That's a big expenditure.

It's the

acquisition of the Wailuku water system.
We put in a number of $7 million of

8

9

There's one thing that I forgot to

mention a little bit and I'd like to --

5

7

We've been --

County funds to be able to try and acquire this

10

system.

11

and it's a number that we're putting in there

12

sort of as a placeholder.

13

We still have to negotiate that amount

Any

nlli~er

that we negotiate, we will

14

come to the Council and we will have discussions

15

with the Council on the actual dollar amount.

16

We picked that number because that's the

17

number that the Wailuku Water Company used in

18

all of their legal documents when they put the

19

company together as a value.

20

they formed the company, they used $7 million as

21

a value of the assets so that's why we picked

22

that number.

23

So, you know, when

We also went to the State and we're

24

asking for $10 million from the State but the

25

State money we're not sure of.

Okay?

So it's
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1

kind of a shot in the dark.

We're hoping to get

2

that money but we're not sure that we can.
So whatever we work with, we will come

3
4

to the Council and discuss the acquisition with

5

you.

6

will want to have a more thorough discussion

7

about this particular issue.

And I'm sure that Councilmember Anderson

But we are before the State Water

8

9

Commission and there are a lot of major issues

10

having to deal with water in this area.

But I

11

do think it's something that we need to take

12

very seriously and we do have this opportunity.
The reason that we're actually looking

13
14

at condemnation right now as part of the

15

process, prior to this

16

the past Administration actually had hired a

17

consultant to study the acquisition and the

18

consultant

19

therefore, he didn't come out with official

20

results.

21

to our Administration,

his contract was never paid;

In discussions with the consultant, he's

22

suggesting that -- and we're actually seriously

23

considering paying him to be able to get the

24

findings that he did the work on.

25

suggesting that this may be the cleanest way to

But he's
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1

be able to acquire property and not have future

2

challenges.
But we are going to have the discussions

3
4

with the Council in a lot more detail, but the

5

number in the budget is to basically have a

6

starting point for negotiations.

7

CHAIR

~~E:

Thank you, Mayor.

Ms. Anderson.

S

9

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

10

Thank you for that, Mr. Mayor.

11

So what his findings -- he's completed

12

his findings and just never released them to the

13

County?

14

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

16

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

l7

COrnqCIL1~MBER

19

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

21

Right.

So they kind of canceled the contract

after he did the work.

IS

20

The County never paid him for it.

it.

ANDERSON:

But did he finish the work?

He -- he's pretty close to finishing

I don't know if there's a final document.
We kind of found out by accident at the

22

State Water Commission.

23

us and said, you know, I've been doing all the

24

research on this and I did it for the past

25

Administration but they canceled the contract so

A gentleman came up to
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1

I'm willing to work with you and -- so that's

2

where I'm getting this from.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

he looking for to complete his contract?

4
5

6
7

And so what kind of money is

t~YOR

ARAKAWA:

I'd have to discuss it with him but

it's not that much.
ANDERSON:

COrn~CILtffiMBER

Because I think any

8

information we can get would be valuable in any

9

decision making, so I hope you pursue that.

10

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

Yeah, I'm definitely looking at it

11

because you're absolutely right.

12

best information I can.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

CHAIR KANE:

Member

I need to get

Thank you.

"~derson,

and without the

15

objection from the Committee, we'll go ahead and

16

do a follow-up, again, with the Mayor and then

17

he can provide us something back so we can

18

develop a communication on this particular item.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah, I'd appreciate that

20

because I think that, you know, it's a complex

21

issue and the more information we can get, the

22

better.

23

And I will add right now that I would

24

hope that the County would do some kind of

25

testing so that we could have some assurance
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1

that we're going to have an adequate treatment

2

facility for this water because we don't want to

3

repeat the Upcountry situation in Central Maui.

4

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

I don't want to get into a whole lot

5

of discussion about it because that's not really

6

the topic, but I will just point out that there

7

is a lot of discussion to be had and we really

8

need to schedule a meeting with your Committee,

9

possibly an executive session for some of it, to

10

be able to talk to you about the different
permutations that we're working with.

12

And it's a -- it's a very hotly

13

discussed topic of the State Water Comrr,ission

14

and has been for quite some time.

15

week I was at one of their meetings and there

16

are many issues that are associated Vlith this

17

particular topic.

18

Just last

So I think that Vie really do need to

19

have a meeting on it to further, you knoVl, our

20

discussion point so everybody's up to speed on

21

what actually happened to this point because

22

it's coming in in dribbles as different meetings

23

are had -- occurring at the State level betVleen

24

lawyers and Vlith us, as Vlell.

25

corn~CIL~MBER m~DERSON:

Okay.

Okay?

Thank you.
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1

CHAIR KFNE:

Any further questions for the Mayor from

2
3

Thank you.

his opening remarks this morning?

4

Hearing none.

5

Mayor, thank you very much.

We

6

appreciate your presence this morning and your

7

comments.
And if there is any further requests

8
9

from the members to you, we'll make sure that we

10

get a communication up to you and thank you for

11

making yourself available.

12

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

Thank very much and, again, my

13

condolences on the work that you're going to

14

have to do.

15

And I, again, offer at any timE if you

16

want me to come down to talk to you about any

17

issue, I'd be more than happy to.

18
19

Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mayor.

20

Mr. Ginoza, good morning.

21

Do you have any additional comments at

22

this point and before I -- forgive me.

23

take a step back.

Let me

24

Members, just for your information.

25

Today we're scheduled to go over the budget
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1

overview, the general areas, and that's with the

2

Mayor who just gave us his comments as well as

3

the Budget Director and I believe Mr. Ginoza is

4

preparing to give us a little presentation about

5

IS-minutes long.

6

We also will be dealing with County

7

revenues, Countywide expenses and Real Property

8

Tax.

9

Director of Finance, Mr. Kalbert Young, and they

10
11

And we have both Mr. Ginoza as well as the

have prepared a few presentations.
So that's, generally speaking, our

12

schedule for today and depending on where we end

13

up with these presentation and the Q&A that will

14

follow will determine the rest of our day.

15

Members, just as a note, too, we do have

16

a scheduled Upcountry district meeting tonight

17

for the Pukalani-Kula-Uka-Ulupalakua District,

18

6:00 o'clock, over at the Hannibal Tavares

19

Community Center.

20

So we will be adjourning on or before or

21

in the area of 3:30 this afternoon so you can

22

take care of your personal needs, as well as

23

getting to the meeting site on time.

24
25

So with that, Members, before we go any
further, we do have public testimony open.
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1

We'll provide the Director to do his opening

2

remarks and a few Q&As, and then at that point

3

if we don't have anybody else

4

up to testify, we'll go ahead and close it for

5

today.

6

morning, Members.

7

good time, and then we'll go ahead and close it

8

so that we can move along with our discussion.

anybody signed

And we'll do the same thing every
We'll leave it open for a

Mr. Ginoza.

9

And good morning.

10

The Chair would like

11

to recognize Mr. Kalbert Young, our Finance

12

Director, this morning.
Mr. Ginoza.

13
14
15

MR. GINOZA:

Thank you, Mr. Chair, Council members.
I have an opening remark with respect to

16

a follow-up with the Mayor's discussion on the

17

budget overview and I may be repeating some of

18

the things that he mentioned so bear with me.

19

The budget objective was to evaluate the

20

financial resources made available by the strong

21

economic growth the State of Hawaii and Maui has

22

enjoyed with increased visitors and real

23

property -- real estate valuations and to invest

24

such funds to increase public safety,

25

effectively and efficiently meet the increasing
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1

demands for service from a rapidly growing

2

community and improve and expand the County

3

infrastructure facilities and land inventory.

4

I would like to just share with you

5

the -- just a summary of the budget.

6

could refer to Exhibit 1 that was handed out.

7

have handed out about four pages of exhibits.

8

It's labeled Exhibit 1 through 5.

9

So if you
I

On the first exhibit, you know, and just

10

illustrating the totality of the County budget,

11

which would include the Grant Revenues.

12

there may be some confusion as to what the total

13

budget is versus what the County Funds budgets

14

is.

15

So

On the total revenue -- I mean, on the

16

total budget in Exhibit 1 where I've illustrated

17

the Operations, the CIP and the total budget,

18

which would include the Grant Revenues of a

19

total of 74 million.

20

So the aggregate budget for the County,

21

which would include the Grant Revenues, is

22

$542,213,272.

23

there is the County Funds portion, which is

24

basically what we will be dealing with in terms

25

of allocating the funds that are available.

So within that total budget,
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So in Exhibit 2, I tried to illustrate

2

the breakdown of the County Funds budget by

3

General Fund and the Special Revenue and

4

Enterprise Funds because the Special Revenue and

5

Enterprise Funds are basically funds that, you

6

know, should be targeting for self-sufficiency

7

and, of course, the General Fund is to take care

8

of all other aspects of the budget.

9

So as you can see in the General Fund

10

portion, you know, we -- I do have the estimated

11

revenue at a total of 279 million and the

12

Operating Appropriations comes out to

13

243 million, which allows for CIP projects to be

14

financed with, if you want to call it County

15

Cash rather than Finances or Loans.

16

the Special Revenue Funds, you know, we have

17

total revenues of 188 million and our Operating

18

Appropriations of 120 million and so -- and

19

included in this 188 million are the loans for

20

the State Revolving Fund, as well as Lapsed

21

Bonds and General Obligation Bonds of almost

22

30 million.

23

Whereas,

So the details of the budget, which will

24

be deliberated at a later time, reflect the

25

planned expansion of public safety with, you
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know, proposed expansion positions, as we will

2

discuss, in the Police and Fire departments and

3

for Capital Improvements relating to the

4

construction of Kaunakakai fire station in

5

Molokai for 10.5 million or budgeted for

6

10.5 million; planning and design of the Kihei

7

police station of 1.5 million; purchase and

8

renovation of the much needed morgue at

9

4 million; and the proposed purchase of 27 acres

10

in Haiku for County service complex, which will

11

include Fire, Police -- hopefully include Fire,

12

Police, ambulance and other County facilities

13

and that's, as the Mayor mentioned, is budgeted

14

at 3 million.

15

The budget also includes expansion

16

positions in Finance, Parks and Recreation and

17

other departments to effectively and efficiently

18

meet maintenance and service demands of the

19

County.

20

In addition to Capital Improvement

21

Programs for Fiscal Year 2007, include the

22

following infrastructure type improvements.

23

There's 26 million, as the Mayor mentioned, for

24

Wastewater system improvements; 30 million for

25

roads and drainage improvements, of which
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20 million comes from federal funds, federal

2

grants; 17 million for the water intake system,

3

as the Mayor discussed, with 10 million in State

4

grants; 12 million in other water projects; and

5

12 million in parks and renovation improvements,

6

which includes 2.5 million for the renovation of

7

the Boys and Girls Club facility in West Maui.
The Fiscal Year 2007 budget was based on

8

9

the Fiscal Year 2006 Budget Operating

10

Appropriations for salaries and wages,

11

operations and equipment and adjusted for normal

12

routine increases and for the needs anticipated

13

for the 2007 year as reflected on Exhibit 3.

14

So if you can refer to Exhibit 3 in my

15

handout.

16

into the three categories and these are

17

Operating Appropriations and not CIP.

18

segregated with salaries and wages, operations,

19

and equipment.

20

appropriations and I've broken it down by the

21

different elements that comprise the increases

22

to get to the 2007 appropriations or proposed

23

appropriations.

24
25

I've segregated the appropriations

It's

And I start with the 2006

The first element is, you know, we take
into account the salary adjustments of the
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existing employees without any expansion costs.

2

So that

3

$10 million, and that equates to about

4

9.6 percent of the 2006 salaries and wages.

that alone came out to in excess of

In addition to that, we included the

5
6

expansion positions, which not only include the

7

salaries and wages but also includes, you know,

8

operating supplies, you know, and other items of

9

expenditures that's needed to

to accompany

10

the expanded position, including equipment which

11

would also include computers and the like.

12

amount -- the amount of salaries and wages

l3

related to expansion position came out to

14

2.7 million.

15

and equipment cost, the expansion positions are

16

expected to be at 3.2 million.

17

account that these expansion costs are really a

18

portion of the year where a lot of the expansion

19

costs were estimated to be for eight to six

20

months.

21

larger than the initial 2.7 million.

22

That

And with all the other operation

And take into

So the future costs will, of course, be

In the budget process when I started,

23

you know, it was already in place where fuel was

24

really a problem -- fuel and the related costs

25

were a problem in terms of the increases that we
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were experiencing.

2

budget of the departments by isolating the fuel

3

costs, the electricity costs and some of the

4

utility cost and applying a flat percentage

5

increase so that, you know, as a budget -- the

6

budget as a whole would incorporate these

7

increases kind of systematically.

8

9

So we took that out of the

So for the fuel costs -- and, again, it
was kind of at the beginning part of 2006 or

10

later part of 2005, but it was determined that

11

to use 30 percent for fuel adjustments and

12

15 percent for electricity and 5 percent for

13

other utilities.

14

with some of our departments during this past

15

year, you know, some of the fuel costs were

16

getting quite high.

17

the increases that they were experiencing in the

18

supplemental appropriations that we were

19

handling to include that within the 2007 budget

20

so we're not behind from the beginning.

21

cost came out to be about $4.8 million.

22

And as we have experienced

So we did try to include

So that

Then related to the expansion positions

23

and the increase in salaries and wages, the

24

allocation to the Special Revenue Funds would

25

since it's a factor based on salaries and wages,
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1

would have to be increased and so we applied the

2

rate of increase

3

Benefits and overhead to the increase in

4

salaries and wages for the existing employees,

5

as well as the expansion positions.

the rate of the Fringe

In addition to that, there's increase or

6
7

adjustments made to the Debt Service charge to

8

the Special Revenue Funds and the Enterprise

9

Funds.

10

So those total came out to be about

3.5 million for the 2007 budget.
This is the increase.

11

Been working with

12

the departments, you know, they -- they made

13

their proposals in terms of the increases they

14

needed for operations, as well as equipment.

15

And through the process of discussions and needs

16

2. -- I'm sorry

17

expenses that were proposed from the departments

18

were approved and included in the proposed

19

budget.

20

310,000 of additional equipment that were

21

included in the proposed budget.

22

24.9 million of operational

And for the equipment, there were about

So the total increase in the Operating

23

Appropriations comes out to about 46 million in

24

total, which represents about 14.8 percent; and

25

for salaries and wages, it was 12.8 million and
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12.2 or 12.3 percent increase; for the

2

operations, it increased by 33 million, which

3

represents a 16.2 percent increase; and for the

4

equipment, it was increased by 728,000 or

5

729,000 and that represents 11.6 percent

6

increase.

7

The proposed Capital Improvement

8

Projects for 2007 were based on the needs of the

9

projects requested by the respected departments

10

and the available funding resources.

If you

11

turn to Exhibit 4, this is an illustration of

12

the additional resources that were made

13

available with the increases in Real Property

14

Tax and just the general strength of the

15

economy.

16

would call "operating revenue" versus revenue

17

including loans.

18

State Revolving Fund loans nor does it include

19

special assessments as related directly for CIP

20

or the GO Bonds.

And this schedule represents what I

So these do not include the

21

So the total increase in revenue is 64

22

million and that includes 38 million from Real

23

Property Tax, as I'm sure we'll get into

24

discussions in more detail.

25

individual current

And for the

charges for Current
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1

Services, I've tried to identify the larger

2

revenues that's related to the division.

3

we look at the Wastewater, there's an increase

4

of 2.7 million; Solid Waste is an increase of

5

700,000; Water Supply, there's an increase of

6

4 million.

7

the reasons for these increases for especially

8

the Wastewater and Water Supply when we get into

9

the revenue analysis.

10

And if

And we'll get into discussion as to

Also included in the charges for Current

11

Services is Public Transit Bus Fare, which is

12

being proposed in this budget, which, again,

13

we'll have discussions in detail later on.

14

There was a decrease in the other

15

charges for Current Services and the bulk of

16

this decrease was really the result of decreases

17

in the Golf Fund revenues based on the estimated

18

revenues of 2006.

19

The Transient Accommodation taxes was

20

increased based on our recommendation for the

21

2007 revenue amount was 1.3 million; license

22

fees and others, 1.6 million; and I missed the

23

Public Service Tax of 600,000.

24
25

The other large increases were in the
Interfund Transfers of 7.7 million and
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1

Carryover/Savings of 7.5 million.

2

Carryover/Savings Fund -- I'm sorry

3

Carryover/Savings, I've listed the

4

Carryover/Savings by fund so we could look at

5

the changes in the Carryover/Savings by funds

6

because really the crucial Carryover/Savings for

7

the budget is the General Fund, which increased

8

by 8.2 million.

9

For the
for the

So looking at all the resources that's

10

available, I prepared Exhibit 5, which

11

illustrates the funding mechanism of the Capital

12

Improvement Projects that were being proposed.

l3

So if you look at it similar to a business, you

14

know, if you start with your estimated operating

15

revenues, which is from Exhibit 4, and the

16

proposed 2007 operating appropriations, would

17

give you what a normal business would call

18

"net profits."

19

excess of appropriations and that was

20

44.5 million and that would then be available

21

for any CIP projects or CIP items that needed to

22

be funded.

23

And for us it's really funds in

So the funding for the CIP projects

24

would be the 44.5 million; the Park Assessments

25

for 1.8 or 1.9 million; the Water Supply has
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1

special assessments as restricted to CIP

2

funding, so that carne out to B.9 million; and

3

the State Revolving Fund loan of 19,050,000; and

4

Lapsed Bond Fund of 110,000; and the bond

5

proposed bond issue of 29.5 million would

6

would represent the funding necessary for the

7

County Fund portion of the CIP of 103,795,000.

B
9

the

That concludes my presentation.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Ginoza.

Members, before I engage the discussion,

10

11

Ms. Sakamoto, is there anybody signed up to

12

testify at this time?

13

MS. SAKAMOTO:

14

CHAIR KANE:

No, Mr. Chair.
Is there anybody here in the Chamber

15

that was -- wish to testify, now is your

16

opportunity for today's meeting.

17

closing testimony for today, Members.

We will be

18

Hearing none or seeing nobody approach.

19

Members, without objections we'll close

20

public testimony for today's meeting.

21

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23
24
25

Okay.

No objections.
Thank you.

We'll go ahead and

take care of that.
The Chair will open the floor now to
Mr. Hokama.
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1

2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman -- excuse me --

Chairman, thank you.
Let me just get some re-verification,

3
4

please, Mr. Ginoza.

5

second page of your handout this morning to the

6

Committee, those in ... flat increases for fuel,

7

electricity and utilities, that is above what

8

you have asked Council to make adjustments with

9

the supplemental request that we are either

10

On Exhibit 3, which is the

processing or we have just recently approved.

11

MR. GINOZA:

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

That is correct.
Okay.

So let me understand now when I'm

14

looking at your chart, which is page 4, the last

15

page

16

handle.

I take that back.
Exhibit 4.

17

MR. GINOZA:

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

I'm trying to get a

Third page, yeah.
Okay.

Under General Fund Carryover, your

20

estimation at the end of this fiscal year is

21

$18 million in savings.

22

MR. GINOZA:

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

24
25

Carryover from 2006, that is correct.
Okay.

So let's go to page 2 and Exhibit 3.
And yet you are still asking us to give you
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1

another $25 million in anticipated additional

2

needs?

3

MR. GINOZA:

Are you referring to the additional

4

anticipated needs for 2007 on the Operations

5

column?

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

MR. GINOZA:

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yeah.

Yes.
Yes.

So you're showing all these savings,

9
10

which the departments for various reasons didn't

11

spend, and yet you need another 25 million more

12

above that?

13

MR. GINOZA:

Yes.

14

If I may, Mr. Chair.

15

Part of the increases in the 24 million,

16

there's about a million in additional grants

17

that Department of Housing and Human Concerns

18

are proposing and, also, there's additional

19

grants from the Mayor's office, the Office of

20

Economic Development, of about 2.7 million; then

21

we have about 2.2 million for abandoned vehicles

22

and white goods, as the Mayor is, you know,

23

really trying to get a handle on the problem

24

with abandoned vehicles.

25

In addition to that, there's about
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1

2.2 million for public transit system expanded

2

routes; and for the Wastewater system, there's

3

like about 2.B million -- I'm sorry -- the Solid

4

Waste system as we, you know, discuss in the

5

previous year -- I mean -- previous -- in the

6

2006 year, with supplemental appropriations

7

that's pending with Council.

8

asking for an additional 2.B million for cover

9

material, there's some EKO contract increases

You know, they're

10

and the -- and they want to start an integrated

11

solid waste management plant so that they have

12

some direction as to what the department or the

13

division needs to do.

14

Supply --

15

VICE-CHAIR

HOK~:

And for the Water

You know what, Mr. Ginoza, in

16

order to be fair to the departments, this is a

17

general sum total not by departments in your

18

handout to us?

19

MR. GINOZA:

Yes.

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

You have a sheet with you you

21

could share to the Committee that showed the

22

General Fund savings by departments?

23

MR. GINOZA:

24

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

Savings-That helped you to arrive at the

total, the $18 million.
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So let's say Parks had savings of, for

1

2

example, 3 million -- and, again, this is just a

3

figure out of the hat.

4

maybe 2 million savings to help you to arrive to

5

the 18.

6

MR. GINOZA:

Park, Public Works was

Well, if you looked at the schedule

7

that's on Exhibit 4, the General Fund by itself

8

is 17 or 18 million.

9
10
11
12

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
MR. GINOZA:

And the individual Special Revenue Funds

are on the bottom.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

MR. GINOZA:

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

MR. GINOZA:

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

I'm concerned about General Fund

savings by departments.

17

19

I'm not concerned about the

special funds.

14

16

Right.

I don't have it by departments.
Is that something you could

provide the Committee?
MR. GINOZA:

I would have to defer to Finance to see

21

if that report can be done because that's

22

like ...

23
24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Young, are you prepared to respond

to the request of Mr. Hokama?
MR. YOUNG:

Thank you, Chair.
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1

CHAIR KANE:

2

MR. YOUNG:

Yeah.
Mr. Chair, Finance Department could get

3

the number.

4

us today.

5

The

We don't have that presented with

again, the general basis or

6

estimate was provided in the year-end Finance

7

Director's quarterly report.

8

Committee met, when we did go over the report,

9

there was some estimates broken down by the

The last time this

10

departments individually for the operating that

11

did reflect some -- that did reflect the

12

estimated carryover/savings at that time.

13

But for the more accurate numbers, we

14

can provide it but not -- not at this meeting

15

within the next ten minutes.

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

My point is, Mr. Chairman, if

17

there are things that the current funds can

18

accomplish now in this fiscal year, whether it

19

be as Mr. Ginoza mentioned as an example, the

20

Derelict Vehicles program.

21

already been totally exhausted, but I'm taking

22

it as an example.

23

be doing it and taking care of it now and not

24

wait for the next year's funding,

25

$18 million of General Fund savings.

Again, that fund may

Then my point is, it should

if we have
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1

And it just, you know, states my

2

position that while cash looks good in savings,

3

let us not forget the amount of debt being

4

requested in these sheets, $50 million.
I'm done at this point, Chairman.

5
6

CHAIR KANE:

7

Okay.
And so before I move on to

8

Mr. Pontanilla, Members, without objections,

9

we'll have a follow-up letter to the Department

10

of Finance for them to provide us with an

11

accurate breakdown at how they arrived at

12

department, the breakdown of carryover and

13

savings for the 17,967,888 figure.

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

15

CHAIR KANE:

We'll get that.

16
17
18

Okay.

by

Yes, Mr. Ginoza, before we move on to
Mr. Pontanilla.
MR. GINOZA:

I would just like to respond to

19

Mr. Hokama's comments, especially with respect

20

to abandoned vehicles.

21

I mean, abandoned vehicles in the

22

current budget is a separate program and there

23

may be limitations in terms of spending for that

24

program without some supplemental

25

appropriations.
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1

But I think the breakdown by departments

2

that's going to be provided by Department of

3

Finance may resolve some of these questions.

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

CHAIR KANE:

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

8

9

Yeah, thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.

6
7

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

Just to clear my mind, you know, coming
back to the fixed increase for fuel, electricity

10

and other utilities.

11

reflected on this sheet here is a roll up of all

12

of the departments?

13
14

15

MR. GINOZA:

The number that is

I -- I beg -- could you repeat the

question.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

The number that is showed,

16

4.7 mill, is that the roll up for all of the

17

departments in regards to the fixed increase for

18

fuel, electricity and other

19

MR. GINOZA:

That's correct.

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21

MR. GINOZA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

utilities?

That is correct.
Is there a mechanism to,

23

you know, rather than

when I look at fuel,

24

you know, I look at the different departments

25

and some of them have big increases, some of

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524 090

70

BF 3/22/06

I

them have hardly any increase.

2

Is there a mechanism where all fuel go

3

to one central location, rather than having all

4

of the departments create their own fuel budget?

5

MR. GINOZA:

I believe in the Public Works there's

6

the gas is purchased by one -- I mean, it's

7

purchased together for the County, primarily for

8

the County.

9

And for the Special Revenue Funds, those

10

fuels are allocated to those Special Revenue

11

Funds because Special Revenue Funds need to

12

account for their individual expenses.

13

But I don't believe -- and maybe the

14

Finance Director can correct me, but I don't

15

believe the fuel is allocated to the different

16

departments that use the fuel within the General

17

Fund.

18
19
20

So the fuel is purchased, you know, in a
single source by Public Works.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

And the other departments

21

could go down Kaohu Street into the base yard,

22

fill up their gas, and the number that we

23

show

24

example, Parks.

25

garage to fill up fuel and the number that is

or that is shown -- like say

good

Is Parks going down to the
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1

reflected in the Parks Department, is that a

2

number that is being paid to Public Works in

3

regards to purchase of fuel?

4

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

6

MR. GINOZA:

Okay.

Except for Parks, I believe, it's the

7

golf course portion of Parks because Parks

8

itself is not a Special Revenue Fund.

9

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

10

MR. GINOZA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yes.

And I could be wrong.
Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

12
13

Yes.

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.
Any additional

14

15

MR. GINOZA:

Can I

16

CHAIR KANE:

I'm sorry.

17

MR. GINOZA:

And, you know, the fueling is not only

Go ahead.

18

at Wailuku, but I believe there's fuelings at

19

Lahaina, Hana and different -- different areas

20

of the -- of the County.

21
22
23

CHAIR KANE:

Is there any request for further

clarification on the fuel?
And the Chair just wanted to note in

24

your remarks, your opening statement,

25

Mr. Ginoza, as well as the question that was
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1

followed up by Mr. Hokama, there's an existing

2

number that's being reflected in the respective

3

departments and divisions for fuel costs in

4

their operating budgets.

5

This $4.7 million is dispersed

6

throughout those respective areas or is it in

7

one pot identified in one place for the budget?

8

MR. GINOZA:

It's -- Mr. Chairman?

9

CHAIR KANE:

Please.

10

MR. GINOZA:

It's dispersed to the extent that the

11

fuel is

the fuel costs are allocated to the

12

respective departments.

13

For example, Water is a different

14

department with respect to it's a Special

15

Revenue -- I mean, I'm sorry

16

Enterprise Fund where their accounting requires

17

the allocation of costs to their accounting

18

system.

19

it's an

So when we prepared the allocation or

20

these increases, you know, we have access to --

21

to -- through the accounting system of locating

22

all of the sub-object codes that relates to

23

Water.

24

all the water costs were allocated to each

25

division or department and the rates are

So when we pulled it up, we know what
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the rates that I've explained were

1

applied

2

applied to those amounts and charged back to the

3

respective departments that generated those

4

charges.

5

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.
The other question is the baseline for

6
7

us to calculate out the 30 percent that you

8

folks are increasing over the 2006

9

appropriation.

The baseline is based on last

10

year's beginning numbers that were requested or

11

I think Mr. Hokama brought up the adjusted fuel

12

rates since we've dealt with during the fiscal

13

year adjustments?

14

11R. GINOZA:

For -- the adjustments that we

15

requested -- the large adjustments we requested

16

for the supplemental budgets in 2006, thus far,

17

represents electricity charges.

18

And, yes, we -- you know, because of the

19

shortfall of the 2006 appropriation, we needed

20

to include that in the calculation of the

21

increases for 2007.

22

beginning 2006 appropriation number, we're

23

already behind, for example, like Wastewater.

24

We would be behind 825,000.

25

increasing Wastewater's electricity charge to

Because if we just use the

So without
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1

reflect an accurate 2006 appropriation and then

2

applying the increases, then we would be short

3

again in 2007.
So the answer to your question is, yes,

4

5

we've applied the percentage to the extent of

6

increases in the 2006 appropriations, which was

7

necessary, you know, through the supplemental

8

appropriations.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Any additional clarification

10
11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just one quick follow-up one.

Go ahead.
I just want to get it clear that

14

4.7 million that Chairman Kane asked you about,

15

Mr. Ginoza.
I understand you're going to, you know,

16
17

when you allocate to the sub -- specific

18

sub-accounts, but the pot is going to stay

19

one -- one major specific line; and then after

20

the expenses, then you pull from the pot and

21

then assign to the specific accounts or you're

22

going to break that 4.7 by departments and by

23

divisions and then by operating districts?

24

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Chair?

25

CHAIR KANE:

Please.
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1

2

MR. GINOZA:

Let me start from the beginning and I

may have confused the issue.
But basically, you know, for example,

3
4

electricity charges.

The electricity charges

5

are for the Special Revenue Funds and the

6

Enterprise Funds are billed directly to the

7

departments.

8

electricity charges directly.

So the departments pay the

So then when we -- when we pull the

9
10

information from their sub-object codes from the

11

individual departments, we know what electricity

12

charges were paid in 2006 and to that

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

MR. GINOZA:

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

This four -- excuse me

Yes.
So this approximately

$4.8 million

17

MR. GINOZA:

Yes.

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

is a combination of Trust

19

Funds, Special Funds, Enterprise Funds and

20

General Funds?

21

22
23
24
25

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct because this summary

here is the summary total of all funds.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you for that.

And when will you be providing Chairman
Kane to disperse to the Committee the actual
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1

breakdowns?

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

MR. YOUNG:

Do you have that already, Chair?

We'll have Mr. Young respond.
Mr. Hokama, perhaps I can provide a

4

little bit more clarity by expounding on what

5

Mr. Ginoza was saying.

6

This notation here for the increase in

7

fuel and utilities expense doesn't reflect or

8

change anything in terms of the way the budget

9

has previously been constructed, in that all we

10

did was we told the departments that in

11

anticipation of rising fuel costs, any

12

departments that had a fuel expense or a utility

13

expense

14

or whether it be Public Works' Highways Division

15

that purchases bulk fuel for the County -- any

16

departments that had these types of expenses to

17

apply this -- this fixed percentage increase.

18

whether they be in the Special Funds

So the budget doesn't reflect any change

19

in the methodology from previous years.

20

These -- these charge back arrangements that

21

Mr. Ginoza mentions are the technical and

22

practical aspects and how the budget is applied

23

during the operation of the fiscal year.

24

for the purposes of the budget construction,

25

these -- these fixed increases were just applied

But
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1

to whatever departments had fuel expenses in

2

Fiscal Year 2006.
So I hope that's a little bit more

3

4
5

clearer for you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And, again, Mr. Young, I

6

understand this is the summary and the opening

7

day, but as your Mayor has stated in the past,

8

the devil is in the details and, for me, that's

9

what I'm awaiting, details.
Thank you, Chairman.

10
11

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Any additional clarification in this

12
13

Okay.

area?
The Chair is going to call for a recess

14
15

at this time, our morning break.

16

for 15 minutes.

17

we will continue in this area of the four -- or

18

excuse me

19

presented by Mr. Ginoza.

20
21

We will reconvene at 10:45 and

five exhibits that has been

Members, we'll stand in recess until
10:45.

Committee in recess.

22

RECESS:

10:31 a.m.

23

RECONVENE:

10:53 a.m.

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

We will recess

(Gavel).

(Gavel) .

Okay, Members, we're

reconvened for the March 22nd meeting for the
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1

Budget and Finance Committee.
Members, we're going to continue on with

2

3

questions to both of our directors, the Budget

4

Director as well as our Finance Director and the

5

floor is open to Ms. Anderson.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

7

Thank you, Chair.

Mr. Ginoza I just have a question for

8

clarification.

9

for Wastewater improvements, is that across the

10

board for all plants or is it just for Central?

11
12
13
14
15

MR. GINOZA:

You stated that the 26 million

That's -- that's a gross amount that is

split up between different districts.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And is this primarily for

consent decree requirements?
MR. GINOZA:

Some of it are -- is.

But, for example,

16

like the Lahaina -- Lahaina improvement, I

17

believe they're going to replace the existing

18

facility, portions of the facility.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

20

MR. GINOZA:

Replace portions of it?

Ms. Anderson, could I defer that to the

21

departments because I'm really not -- I'm

22

really --

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah, I -- we need the

details.
I just wanted to know if it was

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

79

BF 3/22/06

1

primarily consent decree and you just said some

2

of it is and some of it isn't.
And the reason I need some clarification

3
4

is because earlier the Mayor said that we're

5

looking at 20 to 25 million a year to maintain

6

the Central system.
Is that -- do I understand that

7

8

correctly that 25 million a year just to

9

maintain it?

10

MR. GINOZA:

I don't believe it's only the Central

11

system but I think the Wastewater system as a

12

whole for the -- for Maui.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so that figure is truly

14

just for maintenance, not for improving any of

15

the facility?

16

MR. GINOZA:

As we get into the discussion of a CIP

17

versus maintenance, what he's referring to would

18

be for items that were included in the CIP

19

portion of the budget.

20
21
22
23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Any further questions on the five

exhibits that's been presented?
Members, the Chair just has one question
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1

at this point on the Exhibit 3, which is page 2

2

of the four-page handout.
Mr. Ginoza, you talked about under

3
4

salary and wages the $10 million figure for

5

salary and wage adjustments of existing

6

employees.

7

was approximately 9 percent increase over the

8

2006 amount; is that correct or can you help

9

can you expound on that just a little?

10
11
12
13

I think you represented that that

What

what does that number represent?
MR. GINOZA:

I believe it's 9.65 percent of the 2006

salary of 104 million.
CHAIR KANE:

Are you at this time prepared to perhaps

14

break down why we have in one fiscal year

15

approximately 9

16

salaries and wages attributed to a -- negotiated

17

contracts?

18

that just a little bit more at this time?

19

almost 10 percent increase in

I mean, can you

can you get into

If you're not prepared to do so, we

20

can -- we'll defer that but at some point we'll

21

be asking you to break that down somewhat.

22

MR. GINOZA:

I'll just address it in a general sense.

23

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

24

MR. GINOZA:

The process that we used was we supplied

25

the different departments with the new rates
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1

based on the negotiated union contracts and for

2

them to apply the correct rates for the year

3

2007.

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

MR. YOUNG:

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

MR. YOUNG:

Mr. Young.
Mr. Chair.
Yes.
That amount should represent the amounts

8

for collective bargaining increases, annual

9

collective bargaining increases, as well as

10
11

annual step movements for individual employees.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.
And then just for additional

12
13

clarification.

Last year the '06 fiscal

14

proposal included within the proposed numbers an

15

anticipated step, as well as salary and rate --

16

salary and wage adjustments.

17

if you can recall?

Is that correct,

18

MR. GINOZA:

I was

19

CHAIR KANE:

I'm just looking at baseline comparison

20

what was last year, which included numbers, and

21

then this year is including the next step, as

22

well as wage increase.

23

MR. GINOZA:

I wasn't here for the 2006, but I

24

believe the standard process is to include the

25

step movements, otherwise the departments would
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1

2

run short of "A" account monies.
CHAIR KANE:

The other reason I asked is because last

3

year at this time I believe the -- the

4

negotiations weren't completed and so we

5

anticipated numbers.

6

dealing with that scenario; is that correct?

7

MR. GINOZA:

This year we're not

My understanding from DPS is that

8

contracts -- the union contracts have been

9

negotiated and finalized through June 30th of

10
11

2007.
CHAIR KANE:

12
13

Okay.

Very good.

So we're working with actuals now,
correct?

14

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

15

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

16

And that was -- the reason for that

17

question is last year we're dealing with

18

anticipated figures, which I believe, Members,

19

through the fiscal year we're noticing that

20

there was more -- we put more than anticipated

21

and this year we're actually working with, you

22

know, with fixed nQmbers based on the actual

23

contracts.

24

So, thank you.

25

Ms. Anderson.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

83

BF 3/22/06

1
2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5
6

Does this figure reflect anything from
any recommendations from the Salary Commission?
MR. GINOZA:

Salary Commission for the division heads

and the department heads and the

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

MR. GINOZA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Deputies.

That is correct.
And -- and did you

10

receive -- did the Administration receive a

11

report from the Salary Commission regarding

12

this?

13
14

15

16
17

11R. GINOZA:

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

CHAIR KrulE:

providing that report?

21

CHAIR KrulE:

22

MR. TAGUCHI:

25

Yeah, sure.
Mr. Ginoza or Mr. Young, no problem with

MR. TAGUCHI:

24

And can we request a copy of

that, Mr. Chair?

20

23

We received the report to indicate the

increases that was distributed by DPS.

18

19

I

just wanted to follow up on that.

3
4

Yeah, thank you, Chair.

Chair Hokama [sic].
Yes, Mr. Taguchi.
We do have that report in the BF-l as a

communication.
CHAIR KrulE:

Okay.
We'll provide assistance to locate that
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1

for you.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4
5

Thank you very much.

Thank you.
Any additional questions in this area on

the five exhibits?

6

Hearing none.

7

Members, that concludes the budget

8

overview component of this morning's anticipated

9

presentations.

We also have County revenues

10

with both our directors here and we anticipate

11

about a 5- or 10-minute presentation.
Are you ready to proceed, Mr. Ginoza and

12
13

Mr. Young?

14

MR. GINOZA:

Yes.

15

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Do you have a handout with that, by the

16
17

18
19
20

way?

MR. GINOZA:

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.
So if you can provide us with reference

point if -- when necessary.

23

MR. YOUNG:

24

MR. GINOZA:

25

I don't have a handout with the revenue

overview.

21
22

Let's go.

It's reference ...
It's -- I'm going to be referencing

the -- the proposed -- proposed budget beginning

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(SOS) 524-2090

INC.

85

BF 3/22/06

1

with page 2-18 under Revenue Overview.

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

CHAIR KANE:

Narrative, Chairman.

Excuse me?
It's a narrative.

Thank you.
Page again?

7

8

Details or program, please.

MR. GINOZA:

2-18?

Beginning at

beginning at 2-18.

I would like to -- Mr. Chair?

9

10

CHAIR KANE:

Go ahead, Mr. Ginoza.

11

MR. GINOZA:

I would like to direct the Council

12

members to Exhibit 4 of the budget overview and

13

this schedule includes the estimated operating

14

revenue for Fiscal Year 2007 and the comparison

15

with Fiscal Year 2006.

16

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Hang on one second and we'll make

17

sure we get to where you're at.

18

Exhibit No.4?

19

MR. GINOZA:

Yes.

20

CHAIR KANE:

Members, everybody there?

21

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23
24
25

Okay.

No.
Let's take a moment.

Your Exhibit 4 is located where,
Mr. Ginoza, just so for clarification?
MR. GINOZA:

It's on my previous budget overview
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1
2

handout.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

3

Utilizing the previous handout.

4

Okay.

5

Members, you ready?

6

Okay, Mr. Ginoza, go ahead.

7

MR. GINOZA:

Go ahead.

I would also like the members

to

8

direct the members to the revenue overview

9

section of the Mayor's budget proposal as I

10

mentioned on -- beginning on page 2-18.

11

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

12

MR. GINOZA:

The revenue overview section provides

13

discussion of the County's major revenue

14

sources, including Real Property Tax, Transient

15

Accommodation Tax, Public Service Tax and major

16

revenues for the Special Revenue and Enterprise

17

Funds.
Unless the Chair wishes otherwise, the

18

19

members may review this section at their

20

discretion or if the Chair wishes, I can go

21

through the individual revenue items.

22

CHAIR KANE:

Members, is it necessary for us to go

23

through the individual items or are you versed

24

enough in this area?

25

We can do a brief overview.

We don't

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

87

BF 3/22/06

1

have to get into too much detail.

2

any question, then we can go ahead and do a Q&A

3

portion.

4

Okay.

If there's

Mr. Ginoza, why don't you just be

5

general in your overview and just briefly touch

6

on the areas specifically.

7

MR. GINOZA:

For the -- of course, the largest area

8

9

Okay.

of income is the revenues, the Real Property

10

Tax.

The Real Property Tax being proposed is at

11

200 million versus the 2006 budget of 161

12

million, which represents about 38 million

13

increase from 2006.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

15

MR. GINOZA:

The Public Service Company Tax -

16

Go ahead.
sorry.

The Transient Accommodation Tax is

17

budgeted at 20,150,000, as compared to the 2006

18

budget of 18,840,000.

19

represents half-year measurement of revenues

20

collected up through December of 2005, and kind

21

of interpolating that for the rest of the year,

22

the estimate for 2006 is 21 million.

The 2006 estimate, which

23

The reason, you know, we didn't budget

24

an excess amount over the 2006 estimate is, of

25

course, the 2006 estimate is an estimate and the
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tourist industry is a volatile industry so we

2

exercise caution in estimating the revenues for

3

this section.

4

CHAIR KANE:

Question, Members?

5

Hearing none.

6

Go ahead.

7

MR. GINOZA:

The Public Service Tax revenue was 2

8

I'm sorry -- 5.2 million budgeted as compared to

9

4.6 million in 2006.

10
11

4.7 million.
CHAIR KANE:

Questions, Members?

12

Hearing none.

13

Go ahead.

14

The estimate for 2006 is

MR. GINOZA:

The Fuel Tax, the budgeted was about

15

12 million, which equates the 2006 estimate of

16

12 million and is below the 2006 budgeted

17

amount.

18

And what we were analyzing this -- this

19

particular revenue was that the collections at

20

the end of December were less than the amount

21

estimated.

22

because of the higher prices in gas, either the

23

consumption of the number of gallons may have

24

gone down; therefore -- because the Fuel Tax is

25

based on the number of gallons and not the value

And what we concluded was that
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1

of purchase, which may reflect a reduction of

2

fuel taxes and as the fuel prices increase, we

3

may expect a lesser amount of fuel taxes because

4

of the less consumption of the number of

5

gallons.

6

just speculating in terms of analyzing the

7

decline in revenue up through December of 2005.

8

CHAIR KANE:

We have not confirmed that but we I,ere

Members, any questions in this area?
Just real brief, Mr. Ginoza.

9

So--

10

although you said you haven't confirmed that

11

and I guess the question is from my side.

12

we had the spike last year where regular gas

13

went to almost $4 a gallon, are you folks aware

14

of the decline in the number of gallons

15

purchased?

16

When

It seems that indicators showed that

17

there wasn't, even -- I mean, despite the fact

18

that it went up almost a dollar more than what

19

it is, you know, almost a dollar more than what

20

it is today.

21

So, again, if you can maybe expound just

22

a little bit more in that area as far as why you

23

folks arrived at a decline use.

24

based on, that speculation?

25

MR. GINOZA:

What is it

Again, it was just speculation in terms
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1

of the decline in number of gallons versus

2

the -- the dollars purchased.

3

I don't have any basis for that but it

4

was just a speculation as to why the half-year

5

collection was less than the budgeted amount.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

7

MR. GINOZA:

And the other consideration that we were

8

discussing was that as more hybrid vehicles are

9

being purchased, the number of gallons will

10

reduce unless, you know, usage actually

11

increases.

12

CHAIR

~IE:

The amount of hybrids will be rather

13

miniscule, though,

14

onto the market in a year.

15

I mean as far as what comes

As far -- have you folks done anything

16

there as far as doing analysis of what the

17

various brands that are coming out with hybrid

18

vehicles?

19

MR. GINOZA:

No, Mr. Chair --

20

CHAIR KANE:

Speculation--

21

MR. GINOZA:

-- speculation.

22

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.

23
24
25

Okay.

No.

That's fine.

Mr. Pontanilla followed Mr. Hokama for
any follow-up with this area.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.
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In regards to the Fuel Tax, has the

1

2

department ever gone to the different fuel

3

providers here in Maui County to get information

4

regarding fuel usage for comparison?
In other words, what you're saying is

5

6

that because of the consumption is less and, you

7

know, they may have those numbers that we can

8

utilize to get a more, I guess, definitive

9

number.

10

MR. GINOZA:

We -- Mr. Chair?

11

CHAIR KANE:

Please.

12

MR. GINOZA:

We haven't done that but another source

13

that we may be looking at is the State who

14

collects the Fuel Tax who would have, you know,

15

a better feel as to the level of fuel

16

consumption or fuel taxes that's being paid, you

17

know -- I'm sorry -- the number of gallons that

18

have been sold on which the Fuel Tax is based.

19
20

21
22
23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So to say (inaudible) that

kind of information with the County.
MR. GINOZA:

I'm not sure.

We haven't done that

so -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

It's something that we can

pursue.
CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Young, additional comments?
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1

MR. YOUNG:

Mr. Chair, I would just say that the Fuel

2

Tax as collected by the State, its estimate is

3

based on the six-month actual for Fiscal Year

4

'06 and extrapolating an estimate for the

5

remaining six months.

6

It is -- it is a fact that the County

7

has collected less revenue from the Fuel Tax

8

than anticipated.

9

speculation on our part is the reason as to why

That is not disputed.

The

10

the projection is -- why the actuals are below

11

the estimate?

12

first six months was less than estimated.

13

We know that consumption for the

Some of the points that Mr. Ginoza

14

brought up, you know, we try and speculate as to

15

the reason in terms of if that would be a trend

16

that we could expect to continue and thus would

17

further substantiate why we have a lower

18

estimate for Fiscal Year '07.

19

So to get to Mr. Pontanilla's point, we

20

do know that the State has providing the

21

gallonage number for Maui County it has been

22

less than our anticipate -- than our anticipated

23

amount and that anticipated amount for Fiscal

24

Year '06 was based on the trend that we saw from

25

Fiscal Year '05.
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1

So there is definitely a less in the

2

consumption, but we don't know and the State

3

doesn't know what is the driving factor, whether

4

it is, you know, if there is a threshold in the

5

price of the gas that is where consumers over

6

the longer term are buying less fuel or if the

7

increase in hybrid or alternative fuel vehicles

8

or the increase in diesel use, biodiesel use,

9

may have also contributed to the reduction in

10

the Fuel Tax.

11

12
13

But the amount of gallonage sold is not
in dispute.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

14
15

It is below our estimate.
Thank you.

Hopefully they're using our public
transportation, too.

16

MR. YOUNG:

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

18

CHAIR KANE:

That is another factor,
Yeah.

Thank you.

Thank you.

19

Mr. Hokama, any -- okay.

20

Any questions in this area?

21

Seeing none.

22

Mr. Ginoza, proceed.

23

MR. GINOZA:

yes.

Another smaller amount, but the

24

Franchise Tax is budgeted at 7.1 million as

25

compared to 6 million in 2006.

This has been
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1

the Franchise Tax is based on 2 and a half

2

percent of annual gross receipts from the

3

electric, light and power companies operating on

4

Maui.

5

CHAIR KANE:

Questions, Members?

6

Hearing none.

7

Proceed.

S

9

MR. GINOZA:

The Weight Tax is another tax of the

Highway Fund that was budgeted at 7.3 million,

10

which was in excess of the 2006 budget of 7.1

11

million.

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

Questions?
Now, before we finish up, I was remiss

14

in asking if in each of these areas, were there

15

any proposed rate adjustments?

16

As an example, when we went -- now, we

17

just went through Weight Tax or with Fuel Tax.

IS

In the proposed budget there are no proposed

19

adjustments to those rates; is that correct?

20

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

21

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

22

Members, just for -- just to be clear.

23

Okay.

Proceed.

Okay.

On the next -- on the next fee,

24
25

MR. GINOZA:

the Sewer and Cesspool fees --
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1

CHAIR KANE:

Yes, Mr. Hokama.

2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

covered.

Question if I can on what we just

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Proceed.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

On the Weight Tax, Mr. Hokama?

Okay.

Have you folks made an analysis

8

to see if there's, I guess, analytical or

9

a rationale you can derive?

10

or

Since the Weight Tax and the Fuel Tax

11

seems to be following a similar pattern, do you

12

folks have any comment with that?

13

MR. GINOZA:

When you say "similar pattern," the Fuel

14

Tax is actually decreasing, whereas the Weight

15

Tax is increasing.

16

together.

17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

But we have not tied the two

So if the Weight is still going

18

up and the Fuel is going down, how do we make

19

sense of that, Mr. Ginoza?

20

MR. GINOZA:

Because--

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Is there something that you can

22

share with us to help us understand this,

23

please.

24
25

MR. GINOZA:

I don't have anything specific, but just

looking at the rationale in terms of how Fuel
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1

Tax are charged, Fuel Tax is charged by the

2

consumption of the number of gallons used.

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

MR. GINOZA:

Correct.

Whereas the Weight Tax is based on the

5

weight of the vehicle, which mayor may not have

6

a relationship to the number of gallons

7

consumed.

8
9

10
11

So I -- we have not done any relational
analysis of the Weight Tax versus the Fuel Tax
because they're on different basis.
MR. YOUNG:

Mr. Hokama, your -- what you've looked at

12

it seems very reasonable that they both should

13

be going up because with the Weight Tax based on

14

vehicle registrations, we do know that there

15

are

16

registered in Maui County.

17

every year there's more cars being

So, conceivably, they both should be

18

going up.

19

Fuel Tax or the consumption side has -- has gone

20

down for,

21

So that is a peculiarity and that's why, you

22

know, my comments earlier about coming to some

23

speculation as to the reason or the rationale

24

behind it.

25

That's why it is peculiar that the

you know, that one half of the year.

We are kind of at a loss.

There is
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1

there is probably a factor.

2

there's more light vehicles being sold, you

3

know, compact, subcompacts.

4

analysis we have not done, but you are correct

5

in seeing those two that they should be moving

6

together.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

9

You know, maybe

That kind of

Okay.

And, Chairman, again, when appropriate
with the Public Works base of this two areas,

10

the Fuel and the Weight, hopefully Public Works

11

can help us understand how it ties in to the

12

maintenance of our road system and whether or

13

not the revenues and the amount of vehicles and

14

weight on the system as we meet our standards of

15

pavement makes sense for the long-term program

16

of the safety of the road system.

17

So I just wish to share that and I

18

appreciate Director Young's comments.

19

you.

20
21
22
23

CHAIR KANE:

Thank

Thank you.
Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
I

Thank you, Chairman.

just wanted to add my thoughts on

24

the -- I guess the connection or disconnection

25

between the Weight Tax and the Fuel Tax, one
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increasing and one decreasing.

2

It is conceivably -- one can speculate

3

we are getting more vehicles registered, but

4

people may not be using those vehicles as much.

5

Possibly a reason is, I think Member Pontanilla

6

alluded to it, the use of the public

7

transportation system.
I mean, I'm sure there's a lot of folks

8

9

out there who have two, three cars but maybe

10

just use one -- one or maybe -- you know, one

11

gets more usage than the other.

12

MR. YOUNG:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

14

15

Yeah.

So I'm just --

And the --- kind of taking a stab at

it.
MR. YOUNG:

And the Director of Transportation will

16

confirm that transportation numbers have gone up

17

quite significantly in the number of riderships

18

over that same period.

19

But from an economy standpoint, I'm not

20

sure if we can -- if we can verify that that

21

actually result -- that is the primary result of

22

the change in the numbers.

23

But, again, I believe that that is a big

24

contributing factor, as well as some of the

25

points Mr. Ginoza brought up earlier.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3
4

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

Any further questions in this area,
Members?

5

I guess will also corne into play on the

6

public transit now that there's a proposal for a

7

fee.

8
9

You know, that may have some impact, as
well, so we'll definitely have that discussion

10

with department -- the Transportation Department

11

and the Director.

12
13

MR. GINOZA:

Okay.

Let's move forward, Mr. Ginoza.

Okay.

The next item on revenues is

14

Sewer and Cesspool fees and, Mr. Chair, this

15

revenue is impacted by rate increase proposed by

16

the Wastewater Division of 12 percent for the

17

year -- I mean, for 2007.

18

So that would bring the proposed budget

19

revenue up to 29.9 million, as compared to

20

27.2 million budgeted for 2006.

21

CHAIR KANE:

22
23

Okay.
Again, one more time, this includes the

12 percent increase?

24

MR. GINOZA:

I'm sorry.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

It's a 10 percent increase.
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1

Okay.

2

Mr. Pontanilla.

3

Members, questions in this area?

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

Thank you.

As far as the 10 percent increase in the

5

sewer user fees, would you know what would be

6

the dollar amount impact per household?

7
8
9

MR. GINOZA:

I'm sorry, but I wouldn't -- I wouldn't

know.
CHAIR KANE:

We can get to that in the department.

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11

CHAIR KANE:

Fine.

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
Mr. Molina.

12
13

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

14

Thank you, Chairman.

I don't know if Mr. Ginoza or Mr. Young

15

can answer this question, but is it true that

16

the increase is targeted -- the base rate

17

increase is targeted for residents and that

18

there's no increase for nonresidents?

19
20

Are you aware of that or is that
maybe I can just ask the department?

21

MR. GINOZA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24
25

I'm not aware of the distinction.
Okay.

We'll take care of that when we talk to

the department and the division.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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1

2

CHAIR KANE:

So make a note for yourself,

yeah.
Any additional questions in this area,

3
4

Okay.

Members?

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

One more.

Yes, Mr. Pontani1la, go ahead.
The increase in the user

8

fees, I know last year we had increases in the

9

water usage fees.

10
11

Does this go hand in hand

with the water increase?
MR. GINOZA:

I don't believe it's connected in any

12

way, but what I understand from last year's

13

discussion was that there was a much higher

14

increase proposed for 2006 and the suggestion

15

from Council was to split the increases so that,

16

you know, a portion was granted in 2006 and a

17

portion was going to be granted in 2007.

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

19
20

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

I think the request last year, Members,

21

was 17 percent and we split it up to, I think, a

22

12 or 11 and a 10.

23

it.

So here's the second half of

24

Okay.

Thank you.

25

Any further questions?
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1

Hearing none.

2

Mr. Ginoza.

3

MR. GINOZA:

The other revenue -- the next revenue is

4

the landfill tipping and permit fees.

And,

5

again, there is rate increase that's impacted in

6

here.
The Solid Waste Division requested the

7

8

increase of the tipping fees from 43 to $47 and

9

our estimate of that increase was about 500,000

10

based on their tonnage at that time.
So -- but, of course, the actual

11

12

increase is a little bit more because of the

13

estimated 2006 estimate.

14

revenue is 6. -- almost 7.0 million as compared

15

to 6.2 budgeted in 2006.

16

CHAIR KANE:

17
18

So the budgeted 2007

Members, questions?
Mr. Hokama.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Ginoza, this is -- on what

19

premises have you continued to do this

20

projections that the construction activity

21

remains consistent as it has over the last year

22

or two?

23

Because I'm assuming a lot of this is

24

going to be the commercial sector that's going

25

to be paying the tipping fees, correct?
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1

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So it is your folks'

3

understanding that the construction activity

4

will not decrease at all?

5

6
7
8

9
10

MR. GINOZA:

We base it on the amount of tonnage that

they expected for 2006 and 2007.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So--

So Sewer tonnage -- just the

difference in the rate?
MR. GINOZA:

Yes.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

That's all you -- and so my thing

11

is we assuming the economy is static, we

12

continue to roll as fast as we're rolling

13

currently?

14

MR. GINOZA:

For this, yes.

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

You don't see any changes with

16

the Feds looking at increasing interest and

17

whatnot that it might slow down certain

18

activities in our economy?

19

MR. GINOZA:

I mean, the impact could be there but

20

the impact is also there for most of our

21

revenues.

22

MR. YOUNG:

Mr. Hokama, I think we would just say

23

that the projection for Fiscal Year '06 in terms

24

of the tonnage versus FY '07 for the tonnage was

25

based on that the amount of construction
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1

projects that occurred in '06 was reasonably

2

considered to be on par with what we could

3

expect in '07, while the Administration at a

4

more global level does believe that there is a

5

pending slow down in this -- in that sector of

6

the market.
We believe through FY '07 the numbers

7

8

are reasonable that an FY06 and FY '07

9

comparison is appropriate and reasonable in

10

terms of that tonnage.
Again, it is only an estimate but we

11

12

feel very comfortable that it is conservative.

13

VICE-CHAIE HOKAMA:

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

Mr. Chairman, one more --

Go ahead.
question, please.

It is my understanding, and I may be

17

wrong, but I think we were briefed in this

18

Committee, Mr. Chairman, that a contract

19

regarding part of the diversion program, or what

20

we've been using the term MEF, has not moved

21

forward.

22

Well, part of the MEF's goal was

23

diversion into the landfill and that would take

24

away some of the tonnage, I guess, that was

25

going to be anticipated that is now going back
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1

into the landfill since we haven't moved that

2

component of solid waste forward by anticipating

3

a new proposal for consideration by this

4

Committee.
Any comments on whether or not with what

5

6

you anticipate Public Works to present to this

7

Committee may be an adjustable factor in what is

8

shown to us at this time regarding tipping fees?

9

MR. GINOZA:

My understanding of the MRF, the

10

temporary MRF appropriation that was done in

11

2006, was to

12

anticipating contracting that service out with a

13

vendor and I think they planned to continue with

14

that intent for 2007.

15

they have concluded any contract with the MRF

16

vendor.

17
18
19
20

But so far I don't think

But, again, I shouldn't speak for them
but I think we can address it with them.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you for your comments,

Mr. Ginoza.

21
22

the Public Works Department was

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

23

Any further questions in this area?

24

Forty-three to $47, Mr. Ginoza, that was

25

the adjustment?
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1

MR. GINOZA:

Yes.

2

CHAIR KANE:

Do you know or can you explain briefly

3

how you folks arrived at the $4 increase or if

4

that was a departmental decision and then

5

patched through you folks to consider for the

6

proposal?

7

MR. GINOZA:

That was a departmental request.

8

CHAIR KANE:

Did they give you any indications in

9

your discussions to forward this, the general

10

reason why, you know, an increase first and then

11

why a $4 versus any other type of number?

12

MR. GINOZA:

I'm not aware of any discussions.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

14

division.
Additional questions, Ms. Anderson.

15
16

We'll take that up at the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So could you give us -- you

17

may not have this figure but this is based on

18

tonnage.

19

you're expecting?

20
21

MR. GINOZA:

So what's the increase in tonnage that

It's not so much an increase in tonnage

but it's an increase in the

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

MR. GINOZA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

The fee.

-- rate per ton.
And so with the anticipated

demolitions that are going to be coming forward
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1

soon of some of the major hotels, has that been

2

factored in at all?

3

MR. GINOZA:

Not to my knowledge.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

5

We'll ask Public Works.

6

Thank you.

7

CHAIR KANE:

I think there was a public statement,

8

too, that they're going to try and recycle a

9

vast majority of like Kapalua Bay as an example.

10
11
12
13

I think they made some public comments about
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, Kapalua did, but I

haven't heard anything about the Renaissance.
CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.

Yeah.

So good point.

So that we'll make a note and bring that

14
15

back at division level.

16

Mr. Pontanilla.

17

COUNCILMEMBER

18
19
20
21

PONTAl~ILLA:

Mr. Ginoza.

Thank you.
Do we know the annual

tonnage in regards to the landfill?
MR. GINOZA:

I don't recall specific.

I kind of

recall 120 tons for this particular item.

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23

MR. GINOZA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

25

MR. GINOZA:

120,000 tons.

120 tons.
I'm sorry.
120,000 tons.

But can I defer that to the departments?
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1

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

2

MR. GINOZA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah.

Yeah.

Sorry.
In regards to the

4

supplemental transfer, we'll wait for the

5

department?

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

Yeah.
Thank you.

Thank you.
Any additional questions, Members?

10

Hearing none.

11

Mr. Ginoza, you can wrap up.

12

MR. GINOZA:

The next item is Refuse Collection fees.

13

It was budgeted at 3.26 million, which is

14

consistent with, again, the half-year estimate

15

and extrapolating that to the rest of the year.

16

This is slightly lower than the 2006 budget of

17

3.3 million.

18
19
20
21

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Questions in this area?

Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just one, Chairman.

Mr. Ginoza, did the department consider

22

a universal refuse program whereby we would, I

23

guess, re-direct our policy from doing a refuse

24

fee to one that the property tax would take care

25

of the cost of the program and would take care
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1

of everybody's rubbish, I guess?
But -- and I just bring it up because we

2

3

have been made aware by certain people who are

4

proponents of that concept for us to consider it

5

in this upcoming budget deliberations.
I just ask you if you if you are aware

6

7

that the department considered that and chose to

8

still continue to move forward in the direction

9

we're currently going?

10

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Chair?

11

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza.

12

MR. GINOZA:

I've heard that comment not necessarily

13

from Public Works but that comment about

14

including collection fees or collection revenues

15

within the Real Property Tax.

16

I haven't received any

I haven't

17

discussed -- heard any discussion from Public

18

Works with respect to that item because I think

19

there's a lot of discussion to be made for

20

those -- I mean, you know, if the direction is

21

to be considered.

22
23
24
25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you very much,

Mr. Ginoza.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Further questions in this area for
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1

refuse collection?

2

Hearing none.

3

Mr. Ginoza.

4

MR. GINOZA:

The last large major revenue is the

5

Water Supply Revenue and the Water Service fee,

6

they're proposing a 12 percent increase in their

7

Water Service fees and that resulted in the 2007

8

budget of 36 million -- 36.3 million, as

9

compared to 32.3 million in 2006.

10

CHAIR KANE:

No proposed increase for Fiscal Year

11
12

Members, questions?

'07, correct, Mr. Ginoza?

13

MR. GINOZA:

No.

14

CHAIR KANE:

For this fiscal year?

15

MR. GINOZA:

2007.

16

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.

17

MR. GINOZA:

Yes.

18

CHAIR KANE:

In the rate, correct?

19

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

20

CHAIR KANE:

So there is a 12 percent increase

21

request.

22
23

There's a 12 percent increase.

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And can you refresh my

24

memory on the rate increase that we did last

25

year?
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1

MR. GINOZA:

I'm not familiar.

I'm sorry.

2

CFAIR KANE:

Mr. Young, are you prepared to respond

3

to that?

4

last year's what was agreed upon at Council?

5

I believe it was also 12 percent but

6

7
8

MR. TAGUCHI:

11

I would need some time to research

that.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.
So we will get that information.

9
10

We're just trying to -- or, Staff,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I should remember it myself

but it's so many figures I can't remember.

12

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.

Yeah.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

CHAIR KANE:

We'll get back to that.
Thank you.

Thank you.

15

Any questions in this area, Members?

16

Hearing none.

17

One final opportunity.

Any questions in

18

the whole area regarding County revenues,

19

Members?

20

Yes.

21

Mr. Ginoza, before you move forward, Mr.

22
23

Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILIA:

Yeah, coming back to

24

property tax.

If the department could do some

25

analysis in regards to the what ifs.
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1

If we are to increase the homeowners'

2

exemption by $50,000 as well

3

based on $100,000, what that would come out to?

4

CHAIR KANE:

not an estimate

Mr. Pontanilla, two things.

First,

5

we're going to have a specific area where we're

6

going to talk about Real Property Tax and

7

Mr. Young will give us a presentation; and then,

8

second, staff is already working on looking at

9

various scenarios that would look at just

10

homeowner exemption to match the proposed

11

savings, and then also looking at hybrid -- some

12

tax rate reduction plus some owner exemption

13

increase to provide relief to both ends because

14

we know that one's -- one's progressive, one's

15

regressive and so if we can do a hybrid of that

16

that we may be able to achieve some savings

17

across the board for a lot of people.

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

19

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

So we're working on that from staff and

20

we can -- as we get farther into the process,

21

we'll bring that into a specific discussion and

22

then later on have the decision making with that

23

incorporated.

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.
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1

Any questions for, again, in any of the

2

areas for the budget overview, specifically to

3

revenues?
Ms. Anderson.

4

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

I want to focus back on real property.

6
7

How many appeals were filed last year that have

8

already been determined and -- and can you give

9

me a percentage of those appeals that may have

10

11
12

been successful?
MR. YOUNG:

I'm sorry, Ms. Anderson, I don't have

that figure off the top of my head.
I believe the Appeals Board, though, did

13

14

hear more than 50 percent of all the appeals

15

that were filed but I don't know what the total

16

amount of the appeals that were filed.

17

I can have that for you by the time we

18

do the afternoon session when I do the Real

19

Property Tax presentation.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

Oh, thank you, Mr. Young.

So you're saying 50 percent of all that

22

were filed were heard.

23

other 50 percent?

24
25

MR. YOUNG:

What happened to the

I believe they're either in the process

of being heard or -- or, you know, there is
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some pre-meeting decision is being

1

some

2

determined on them.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

Thanks.

And, then, when did -- when did tax

4

5

Okay.

bills go out, property tax bills?

MR. YOUNG:

Well, the tax bills haven't gone out yet

7

because they're still pending the finalization

8

of the budget rate, the tax rates.
But the assessed

9

10

have gone out --

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

MR. YOUNG:

13

14

15

assessment notices

Yeah.

I think two weeks ago or a week and a

half ago.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And have you had any appeals

filed yet?
I'm trying to get a feeling if we're

16
17

going to have more people filing appeals this

18

year.

19

MR. YOUNG:

Yes.

And the department -- well, the

20

appeals are not filed to the department; they're

21

filed to the, you know, the Appeals Board, but

22

we get a sense of how many appeals have been

23

filed.

24
25

I'm not aware of how many appeals have
been filed within the last two weeks, but our
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1

anticipation is that we always -- when we

2

provide you the numbers or when we provide the

3

Mayor his -- the estimates relative to the

4

values, we do try and, again, guesstimate an

5

amount for appeals.
And one of the considerations is the

6
7

when we look at the increased assessed values

8

for different types of properties to get a gauge

9

of what is the more likelihood of how much we

10

should budget for anticipated appeals.

11

I would say that this year we did -- I

12

believe we did budget for a slightly higher rate

13

of appeals than in the past.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

15

Okay.

Thank you.

And then can you give us an idea or

16

maybe

17

us this afternoon.

18

appeals that were heard, how many of them were

19

adjusted downward?

20

MR. YOUNG:

maybe you said you were going to tell
Of the 50 percent of the

I'll have to look that up.

21

Yeah, I would -- I wouldn't know.

22

have to have the Appeals Board staff take a look

23

and see if they can provide some numbers.

24
25

I'll

I'll try and get that for you for your
afternoon session.
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1
2
3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Young.

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

And if we can't get it this afternoon,

4

we'll make the request upon receipt and we'll go

5

ahead and plug it in at the appropriate time for

6

discussion.

7
8

Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Chairman, thank you.

Just one in the Public Service Company

10

Tax category please, gentlemen.

11

it's -- of course the first year was

12

no way to gauge what would be coming to the

13

County.

14

Over the years
we had

And I notice you're looking at a

15

13 percent increase proposal over this current

16

year.

17

is what, please, so we can -- I have a good feel

18

for your projections.

19
20

MR. GINOZA:

Your basic premise that you're assuming

Mr. Chair, could I have just a second to

look for that?

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Sure.
Mr. Chairman, I just share that,

23

you know, our budget estimate and actually what

24

is the estimate now for the end of the year is

25

quite close.

We're just $100,000 off.
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1

CHAIR KANE:

Yes.

2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So I was wondering how -- what

3

optimism, you know, gave you to go for a

4

13 percent increase?

5

MR. GINOZA:

6

Yes.
We have a schedule that's prepared to

7

show by the different agencies -- like Maui

8

Electric, Verizon, the gas company -- and we

9

have estimates based on the projections for

10

that -- for 2007 and we based it -- 2007 budget

11

based on the projection.

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

This is to adjustments by the

13

Public Utilities Commission on rates that the

14

utilities and other service companies are

15

paying?

16

MR. GINOZA:

This is -- this is a rate of -- I

17

believe this is a flat rate of 1.885 percent and

18

this is in lieu of the Real Property Tax.

19

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

MR. GINOZA:

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

MR. GINOZA:

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

24
25

The rate is set --

Yes.
but it's based on income

Correct.
right?

So I'm just wondering is this -- was
part of your folks' understanding that the
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1

Public Utilities Commission is considering

2

certain adjustments like in

3

Electric?

for us it's Maui

So is that anticipation of fuel

4
5

adjustments or rate adjustments with the gas

6

company and propane, you know?

7

MR. GINOZA:

It wasn't based on any anticipated rate

8

adjustments.

9

been reporting thus far.

10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

It was based on whatever they've

They report to the County -- what

11

is the frequency, please, gentlemen?

12

quarter?

13
14

15
16

MR. GINOZA:

Every

Every six months?
I believe it's recorded in the books

monthly but it's reported quarterly.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Well, our residents are going to pay one

17

way or another, either through the rates,

18

through the utilities or in another manner.

19

A question regarding Transient

20

Accommodations Tax

21

share with you that a Senate Committee yesterday

22

has moved forward legislation that would

23

eliminate any Transit Occupational Tax and that

24

specifically impacts time shares.

25

excuse me.

I would just

Senator Kim has -- is directing this and
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I'm quite surprised that the Committee supported

2

but to eliminate their share of paying -- what I

3

consider their appropriate tax under the State

4

program.
Can you provide us, to our Chairman,

5

6

some adjustments and comments on how this may

7

change our estimated or proposed budget figure

8

if the legislature agrees with Senator Kim?

9

MR. YOUNG:

Well, the time shares' portion of the

10

Transient Accommodation taxes, we can't -- the

11

County does not have a way to derive what is the

12

portion that we get from the State for TAT, what

13

portion of that represents from what property or

14

properties.

15

But we do know that, you know, as the

16

discussions we've had last year, 12 months ago,

17

that the portion contributed from time shares

18

because of the method of the calculation is

19

actually -- it's small in comparison to that of

20

a hotel.

21

And the issue that you bring up is one

22

of the reasons why, as you can see for our 2006

23

estimate looking forward, why we have such

24

you know, we're projecting considerably more in

25

the estimate for actual collections relative to
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what we had budgeted for FY '06.

2

the reason why we're not

3

extrapolate that that will be the amount that we

4

could expect in '07 because there are going to

5

be some impacts, whether or not the economy for

6

the tourist industry will continue for the next

7

12 months at the rate it has been, as well as

8

some pending changes in terms of the calculation

9

for TAT, only one of which is the issue you

10

But it's also

we would hesitate to

bring up, Mr. Hokama.
So I guess the

11

your base question can

12

we find out what is going to be the impact of

13

such legislation.

14

county does not have a method by which we could

15

derive it, not with the information that we get

16

from the State currently.

17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

The quick answer is the

I appreciate your comment,

18

Director Young.

It just still disturbs me

19

greatly, but maybe our position was always

20

correct.

21

we might need to again adjust property tax rate

22

on them.

They don't pay their fair share and so

23

So thank you very much for your comment.

24

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
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Mr. Molina.

1
2

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

If

3

you'll permit me, I have a question on revenue

4

for Real Property Tax.

5

question I asked the Mayor this morning.

Basically the same

I guess for Mr. Young.

6

I don't know if

7

you were in the gallery at the time.

There

8

seems to be a trend according to the Realtors'

9

Association of Maui that the median price of

10

homes are declining, very slight decrease,

11

roughly about 80,000 from September of 2005 to

12

February of 2006, and the Administration is

13

forecasting near 10 percent increase in property

14

valuations.

15
16

Can you share with us how you folks carne
up with that forecast?

17

And the reason I ask is because one

18

would think that as the price of homes go down

19

that maybe assessments would go down possibly,

20

as well.

21

that as to how you folks carne up with that

22

assessment -- or "forecast" I should say.

23

MR. YOUNG:

So if you could sort of educate me on

Certainly, Mr. Molina.

24

Your final statement is correct that as

25

assessments, the way they are calculated in the
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1

county of Maui, are in large part based on

2

comparable sales.

3

assessments are -- should reflect that movement.

4

However, it's not -- it's not guaranteed

So as sales go down,

5

because there are other factors that are

6

involved but that in general -- if

7

assessments

8

assessments in general should follow that of the

9

market.

10

if market price declines,

The point that you bring up about the

11

Realtors' Association for their median home

12

sales, that's a -- is a good indication of where

13

the market is; however, from the Real Property

14

Tax standpoint and assessments, median home

15

sales, what we found, is not really indicative

16

of the median home value in Maui County because

17

it's very skewed with a lot of high-end

18

properties being sold here on Maui.

19

So while I -- you know, while I can

20

appreciate the Realtors' numbers, the numbers

21

for average home assessed values is actually

22

quite less in Maui County than it is for median

23

home sale from the realtor numbers.

24
25

I'm not sure what your reference is on
the 10 percent.

The current assessed values
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that we're seeing on the flashes -- the Real

2

Property Tax will not be certified until around

3

mid April.

4

at on system unofficially, there are varying

5

rates of appreciation of assessed values

6

depending upon what districts we're looking at,

7

type of homes.

8
9

But the numbers that we're looking

And, you know, admittedly some of them
are quite substantial, others we've already

10

starting to see -- even though the values are

11

only up and through December 31st of 2005.

12

starting in September, as you pointed out, the

13

market was noticeably -- there were already

14

indications that the housing market has kind of

15

softened a bit in terms of the prices at the

16

higher ends.

17

So with only three month

And

with the

18

final three months of the year, we have already

19

started to see that there is a potential trend

20

building.

21

decline in home prices or decline in assessed

22

values or more of a leveling off for the next

23

year going forward, it's probably a little bit

24

too early for me to guesstimate on that.

25

Whether or not that will mean like a

And I would just finally point out that
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1

the values that will be presented for assessed

2

values for Real Property Tax represent those

3

values as of December 31st, 2005.

4

increase -- or the assessed value increase will

5

generally represent those that have occurred

6

from January 1st, 2005, through December 31st,

7

2005.

8

lag previous, you know, by the time this budget

9

is implemented with the assessed values and the

And the price

So we're looking at already a six-month

10

tax bills are sent out.

11

the market -- from the time of market to the

12

time of the assessments and the tax bills.

13
14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

So there is a lag in

Thank you for the very

detailed explanation.
Just one last question.

15

How often are

16

the numbers reviewed, you know, in terms of the

17

property tax assessment numbers?

18

the department look at those numbers to, I

19

guess, help with your forecast?

20

MR. YOUNG:

How often does

Well, for the purposes of the Mayor and

21

Mr. Ginoza constructing the budget, because the

22

certification is not done until Council already

23

gets the budget we -- the Real Property Tax

24

Division is constantly looking at -- looking at

25

the numbers that are on system.

But you must
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1

understand that while we're looking at the

2

numbers, Real Property Tax is actually trying to

3

get the certification.

4

any given day are constantly being updated.

5

the numbers that are presented before you are

6

really are a snapshot.

7

something from early March.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

9

MR. YOUNG:

So the numbers are on
So

At best it represents

I see.

So there are going to be changes between

10

the time that the budget was constructed, this

11

proposed budget was constructed, and the time

12

you get the certification, as there are going to

13

be changes between today and by the time we get

14

the certifications, as well.

15

So I would say that during the course of

16

the budget construction, Mr. Ginoza got the

17

flash between January and this -- and early

18

March about four times and Real Property Tax

19

Division looks at it every single day.

20

But the numbers -- because the numbers

21

are constantly being updated, it's not really

22

accurate that I could -- if you called me today

23

and asked me for an estimate, I would give you a

24

different number than if you had called me

25

yesterday or if you call me tomorrow, et cetera,
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1

because the certification rolls have not -- has

2

not been completed yet.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

4
5

All right.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Any further questions, Members, in this

6
7

area, again, for any of the County revenue

8

components that has been described by

9

Mr. Ginoza?
Mr. Ginoza, any final comments in this

10
11

12
13

area?
MR. GINOZA:

Yes, Mr. Chair.

I wasn't really

complete.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Oh, go ahead.

15

MR. GINOZA:

I wanted to inform the members about the

16

carryover/savings.

17

is part of revenue, it is an estimate and it's

18

quite complex in terms of trying to come up to

19

the number because of the unknown numbers.

The carryover/savings, which

20

But, basically, what we try to do is

21

estimate the revenues for 2006 as the actual

22

revenues and try to compare that to the

23

estimated revenues as was budgeted and to do the

24

same with the expenditures adjusted for

25

encumbrances and to compare the projected
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1

expenditures against the appropriations to come

2

up with the carryover/savings.

3

And I wanted to inform the Council that

4

certain -- certain amounts were not included in

5

the carryover/savings.

6

a few pending supplemental appropriations that

7

are with the Council that are not included in

8

savings and these are the Solid Waste

9

Operations' supplemental budget and that's for

There were -- there are

10

the General Fund of 99 -- about -- well, $99,860

11

and the Solid Waste portion of that supplemental

12

was $1,083,978.

13

In addition to that, there are a few

14

other supplemental amendments that

15

appropriations that are pending with Council.

16

There's a fire department equipment request for

17

the General Fund of 1.2 million.

18

that, there's a Police department take-home

19

vehicle program in the General Fund of 4.5

20

$4,541,700.

21

Operations' supplemental appropriation for

22

electricity and that's out of the Water Supply

23

Fund of $1,371,250.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

In addition to

The last one is the Water Supply

Okay, Members, those numbers that were

the latest information were bills that were sent
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1

to us but we ran out of time --

2

MR. GINOZA:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

That's correct.
to deal with.

Okay?

So because they're not included in this

5

budget, the Chair will be at some point that's

6

the appropriate time we'll have the discussion

7

to see whether or not, A, they're going to be

8

incorporated into the budget; B, are we going to

9

make an adjustment to it; C, are we going to ask

10

or request for a priority status on the existing

11

'06 request and how we incorporate that into the

12

'07 budget.

13

discussed.

So these are things that will be

14

We can -- we'll go into general

15

questions now but as far as the detailed stuff,

16

again, we'll go into those areas.

17

One point I will make as an example, the

18

police request.

19

that there's no replacement vehicle request in

20

'07 and the '06 request, which is currently in

21

the Budget and Finance Committee, is the

22

take-home program that the Mayor opened up with

23

in his remarks.

24
25

In the '07 budget you'll note

So we will have to somehow make some
incorporation into the replacement, whether we
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1

agree with the '06 request, make adjustments to

2

that and incorporate it through '07, but that

3

stuff will be hammered out as we go forward.
So these are opening remarks from the

4
5

Budget Director and please feel free to ask

6

general questions to get clarity before we get

7

into the specifics.
I'll recognize Ms. Anderson and then

8

9
10

Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

I just wanted to get a total of the

11
12

supplementals.

13

figures as he was reading them off.

14

CHAIR KANE:

I'm not sure I got all the

Ms. Anderson, what we will do is

so

15

everybody can get that -- we'll ask Mr. Ginoza

16

to provide us in writing a list of those things

17

and so that everybody can get that and we'll try

18

to get that as soon as possible back to you.

19
20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
details.

Well, he just read off the

He should have a total for us.

21

MR. GINOZA:

I can do both.

22

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

23

MR. GINOZA:

And the total -- my calculation,

24
25

I'll respond to your

8,296,788.
COm1CILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you.
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1
2

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Anderson, for your records.
Mr. Hokama.

3
4

And we'll get that also in writing,

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Hearing what the -- Mr. Ginoza

5

our Budget Director has just shared, I'm trying

6

to understand -- and, again, I'm looking at the

7

budget narrative, Mr. Chairman, on page 32-7.
If you look at one of those asterisk

8

9

comments, which is the one with the three

10

asterisks, it states -- and, again, this is more

11

of positions but the statement is -- states in

12

the document, As adjusted for Council

13

approved -- approved budget amendments and

14

budget amendments subject to Council final

15

approval.
So I'm kind of confused what the Budget

16
17

Director just shared by yet what is written in a

18

document.

19

clarity, please, to the Committee at this pOint

20

or if he wants time to respond in writing, that

21

will be fine with me, Mr. Chairman.

22

CHAIR KANE:

So if, Mr. Ginoza, can maybe get some

Okay.

And we'll request both, providing

23

him opportunity to respond and then a follow-up

24

in writing.

25

Thank you.
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1

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

2

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza.

3

MR. GINOZA:

Yes, I recognize the difference in the

4

inconsistency with respect to treating the EP

5

counts versus the supplemental appropriation

6

that I

7

carryover/savings.

8

9

just mentioned within the

I was trying to make the EP -- the EP
count or the EP discussion a little easier in a

10

sense that, you know, the supplemental

11

appropriation for the Public Works Solid Waste

12

Division included seven positions that's pending

13

final approval by Council and I recognize that.

14

But to include that as an expansion in

15

2007, to me, would have made it a lot more

16

confusing to the members in terms of that --

17

that if -- if the supplemental appropriation is

18

approved by June 30th of '06, that is not an

19

expansion position for 2007.

20

So I was anticipating the approval of

21

the Solid Waste supplemental appropriations so

22

that the expansion position for 2007 would be

23

correctly reflected by excluding the seven

24

positions that would be -- would have been

25

approved as of June 30th of '06.

And that's the
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1

reason why it's different with respect to, you

2

know, Council approved versus Council pending.

3

And I'm sorry if I made more confusion,

4

but I was trying to simplify it by

5

eliminating -- and, of course, I'm making a big

6

assumption that it will be approved but, you

7

know, I thought maybe it will make it easier.

8

9
10
11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Budget Director, unfortunately

you have had a very difficult tenure with us so
far with the County I should say.
It's not often in the fourth quarter

12

Council even considers budget amendments for the

13

current fiscal year.

14

circumstances.

15

additional funds to consider putting forth but,

16

again, we are well aware of personnel services

17

and how long it takes to fill positions and so

18

we're pretty much at the cusp.

19

current year or we could defer and wait for this

20

current following the '07 budget consideration.

21

I would just ask that you work with our

I know there's unique

One is, of course, we have

It could be this

22

Chairman and his staff because, you know, what

23

is going to help us make the best decision is

24

the best accurate information, whether we take

25

this snapshot in time or not.

But we need to

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(80B) 524-2090

133

BF 3/22/06

1

get away from all of these uncertainties -- if

2

we do this, this happens, this happens, this

3

happens.

4

factual accurate numbers it's going to take for

5

us to corne up with the best decisions.

6

That premise will never give us a

And I hope you can appreciate the

7

comments I share at this point with you because

8

I'm sure you would like to deal with something

9

definitive and accurate, also, so that your

10

numbers and your response to us can be that more

II

appropriate.

12

Mr. Ginoza.

13

MR. GINOZA:

And I just share that with you,

And -- may I?

14

And just a point of clarification and

15

I'm not -- I'm not pointing at anybody, but I

16

did consult with Council Services with respect

17

to this issue because I felt that it was a

18

confusing issue with respect to expansion

19

positions that we're actually proposing versus

20

we're not proposing.

21

So, you know, I want to be clear with

22

the members that I have not made the decision

23

I have made the decision but not without

24

consultation with Council Services and, you

25

know, and just trying to work this through and
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1

really there's no intent to be misleading or

2

anything in that nature.

3

that clear.

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So I just want to make

Please, Mr. Ginoza, there is -- I

5

take no comment from you as -- or what is

6

proposed as trying to mislead this Committee or

7

members of the Council.
Like I stated earlier, we are aware that

8

9

you are in a very unique situation with the

10

circumstances you're dealing with.

11

saying that we need to corne to terms and make

12

definitive decisions on which way we're going to

13

go, one way or the other, so we can make the

14

best decisions possible.
So I appreciate your comments.

15
16

MR. GINOZA:

17

VICE-CHAIR

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

I'm just

Thank you.
HO~~:

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Ginoza's final point regarding the

20

example or the seven positions as a status,

21

Members, is, if you recall, we've already passed

22

first reading and it's going to be at second

23

reading for those positions.

24
25

So the credit to Mr. Ginoza on the
assumption in this area.

It's pretty much at

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

135

BF 3/22/06

1

the end of the pipeline and it may be a good

2

anticipation on his part that that's going to

3

pass through.
So I want to thank Mr. Ginoza for his

4

5

comments, as well.

6

Members, the Chair recognizes the time.

7

Are there any final questions in this area and,

8

if not, then we will take our lunch recess, come

9

back at 1:30 and we will continue with the two

10

final presentations that will be given.

11

with Countywide expenses and, second, with the

12

Real Property Tax with the intention of

13

finishing on or before 3:30 or if we go a little

14

later, it will be just a little later.

15

First,

And I will also note, Members -- well,

16

I'll save that other note for later for the end

17

of the meeting.

18

Any questions or comments at this time?

19

Hearing none.

20

Members, this Committee will stand in

21

recess until 1:30.

22

RECESS:

23

RECONVENE:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

We are in recess.

(Gavel) .

12:01 p.m.
1:43 p.m.

(Gavel).

Okay, Members, we'd like to

reconvene from the lunch recess the Committee

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

136

BF 3122/06

1

meeting, Budget and Finance Committee meeting

2

for March 22nd, 2006.
Members, we left off at County revenues.

3
4

I believe we exhausted our discussion in that

5

area and so without objection we'd like to move

6

on to the next area.
For the afternoon session we have in

7

8

attendance Members Pontanil1a, Molina, Mateo,

9

Johnson, Anderson, Kane.
Okay.

10

Why don't we go ahead.

This

11

presentation regarding Countywide expenses is

12

going to be with Mr. Kalbert Young from the

13

Department of Finance.

14
15

MR. YOUNG:

Thank you.
Good afternoon, Mr. Chair, Members.

16

This presentation will be by far more brief than

17

your morning sessions as we go over the

18

Countywide expenses and I will be referring to

19

the handout that's been provided to you to

20

supplement that of the budget.

21

it's a single-page handout entitled "FY '07

22

Budget Proposal Countywide Costs".

23

It's entitled

As relayed in the -- in the budget

24

documents, Countywide expenses are projected to

25

be increased from Fiscal Year '06 to Fiscal Year
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'07 by approximately $4.9 million or represents

2

a 6 percent increase.

3

the individual itemized items are the ones that

4

I'm sure you'll have questions on and I've by

5

virtue -- by providing this handout, have kind

6

of outlined some of the breakdowns for the

7

individual items, as well as a brief summation

8

for the reason for those increases.

Now, the increase is upon

And joining me today is Mr. Ty Yoshimi,

9

10

the Controller for the County who was also

11

instrumental in terms of helping to derive some

12

of these estimates for Mr. Ginoza.
As you can see, the big areas in the

13

14

Countywide expenses that we're looking at are in

15

areas such as Supplemental Transfers and

16

Insurance Program, but there also a number of

17

items that relate to increases in terms of

18

the

19

and in Fringe Reimbursements, for instance.

20

or decreases, such as in General Costs

We can start by looking at the Fringe

21

Benefits.

The Fringe Benefits are projected to

22

increase by about 6 percent or 2.7 million and

23

this is primarily due to -- it's proportionately

24

due to the number of salaries that the County

25

will have employed and the contributions that
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1

the County is required to make to the State ERS.

2

As far as the EUTF or the Health Fund is

3

concerned, the actual cost per premium for each

4

of our employees, the contribution the County

5

has to make, is actually -- has remained static,

6

essentially unchanged if not slightly less

7

depending on the plans.

8

can -- there can be an impact relative to if

9

there's an increased number of retirees,

But the overall impact

for

this number is based on the

10

instance, or

11

total number of positions that are included in

12

the budget so if vacancies are diminished, we

13

will also see increases there, as well.

14

The Fringe Reimbursements, this one we

15

also see an increase in terms of a -- by

16

1.2 million, but this is income into the

17

Countywide or reimbursement on the Countywide

18

expense and it's actually due to these same

19

types of increases in Fringe Benefits from those

20

Special Fund items or items that are in the

21

Special Fund.

22

As far as Bond Issuance and Debt is

23

concerned, we see an increase that's related to

24

the increase in the amount of bonds or bonded

25

funds that are being asked for to be
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1

accommodated in the budget, as well as the

2

principle and interest payments from previous

3

debt that we've already -- that's already in

4

existence.
As far as Supplemental Transfers go,

5

6

these represents transfers primarily from the

7

as indicated here, from the Golf Fund and the

8

Solid Waste Fund.

9

you relate to -- all these are itemized on page

As you probably realized, if

10

5-27 in the -- I guess this is the details

11

portion of the budget.

12

not have a Supplemental Transfer in the current

13

year.

But the Golf Fund did

14

For Insurance Programs and Self

15

Insurance, this is a -- there's a flat increase

16

of about $2 million and this largely relates to

17

in the current fiscal year when we -- when the

18

County was looking at its insurance program to

19

renew its policies, there was a dramatic

20

increase in property insurance that I think was

21

felt industry-wide, largely

22

here as the "Katrina-effect," but it takes into

23

account Katrina, as well as Rita, some of the

24

other natural disasters that have

25

hit the U.S. that have direct relation to the

I refer to it

that have
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1

increase in property insurance.

But a large

2

part of that will be -- we hope to be offset by

3

the retention limit ordinance that the Council

4

passed to increase the retention limit this

5

fiscal year.
So we'll have far more options in Fiscal

6
7

Year '07 in terms of shopping for our insurance

8

program.

9

probably the bulk of this $2 million, is for

So I would say that the largest part,

10

what I -- what we are anticipating as an

11

FLSA claim, which I believe the Council is aware

12

that previously the County was subject to an

13

FLSA lawsuit from a number of our union members,

14

although that

15

settled, there's been -- there is a renewed suit

16

that's currently in progress.

17

includes an amount of 2 million for anticipation

18

of whatever proceeds out of that pending

19

lawsuit.

although initial suit was

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

So this amount

Chair?

Ms. Anderson.
Could I ask a clarifying

question?

24

CHAIR KANE:

Sure.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Could you explain to me what
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1
2

3

the retention limit is?

MR. YOUNG:

It's -- for common parlance, I guess it

would be tantamount to like a deductible.
Right now in the -- previously in the

4

5

Maui County Code there was by Code a retention

6

limit of no more than $500,000.

7

last two months, the Council has approved to

8

increase that in the amount of the Code to up to

9

a million.

And just in the

So the thought was that by increasing

10

not to say that we

11

our deductible options

12

will always take the full million dollar

13

deductible, but by increasing that option, it

14

allows us to when we shop for property insurance

15

there's a little bit more flexibilities.

16

compare between if we wanted to take a

17

deductible of $500,000 versus 750 versus a

18

million.

19

We can

We can price and compare.
So we anticipate

we do anticipate

20

doing that to do the comparison and to see if

21

the retention limit change will actually afford

22

us the ability to, you know, get a better

23

insurance policy than we currently have from

24

year to year.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

142

BF 3/22/06

1

CHAIR KANE:

2

MR. YOUNG:

Proceed, Mr. Young.
Okay.
Open Space Fund, that amount is

3

is

4

dependent upon the Real Property Tax take so

5

there's really

6

Council decides to change the tax rates or when

7

you get certification if the certified numbers

8

are different from what is presented in the

9

budget.

10

that amount will change if the

General Costs, we are showing a

11

reduction and this is largely due to what the

12

Chair talked about before lunch was the salary

13

adjustments.

14

there's about $7.2 million budgeted for salary

15

adjustments related to collective bargaining

16

agreements that were in the process when the

17

FY '06 budget was being constructed.

18

In prior years, Fiscal Year 2006,

Our understanding is that there are no

19

collective bargaining agreements that are coming

20

due before June 30th, 2007, so that amount has

21

been -- we don't need to account for that

22

amount; however, there is still a million

23

dollars, an even million, that -- that's in the

24

budget under this expense that's more of a

25

contingency arrangement.
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1

Then Overhead Reimbursements, again,

2

these are reimbursements from Special Funds

3

exclusive

4

These are direct reimbursements from other funds

5

and these, as you also see, as a -- is an

6

increase -- increased reimbursement.

7

exclusive of Fringe Benefits.

The transfer to the Emergency Fund, the

8

Emergency Fund created by Council back for

9

Fiscal Year 2005 was initially funded with

10

$4 million and in the current year the Council

11

has increased that appropriation by adding to

12

this fund by about 1.5 million.

13

budget as proposed seeks to add another

14

2.5 million to this Emergency Fund.

The current

15

I would say that this Emergency Fund is

16

looked very favorably upon by our Bond Counsels

17

and underwriting agencies and our -- our credit

18

rating agencies because it shows some prudent

19

savings for -- in the event that there is an

20

emergency.

21

Lease Costs, this is a line item that

22

only shows up for Fiscal Year 2006.

23

refresh your memory, it was specifically to

24

accommodate leasing of office space for

25

departments in Fiscal Year '06 that were under

And just to
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1

tight constraints.

There is no request on this

2

line item for Countywide in 2007 because this

3

lease expense has been asked for each -- every

4

department that has leased office space, that's

5

been asked for them to accommodate it under

6

their operational budgets.
And, lastly, the First-Time Horne Buyers

7
8

Fund, which was appropriated in Fiscal Year 2006

9

for $400,000 with a Council proviso pending

10

legislation to enact the program.

It's my

11

understanding that the program is -- still has

12

not been fully implemented or created but the

13

same amount, 400,000, has been also proposed in

14

the 2007 budget in anticipation of this program

15

being started.
With that, Mr. Chair, if you or the

16
17

members have any questions, then we can get more

18

into -- delve more into the specifics of these

19

numbers.

20
21

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
We'll go right down the line.

We'll

22

start with Member Johnson and we'll work to my

23

left and we'll come back around to

24

Mr. Pontanilla.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

Thank you very much.
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Because, you know, when you go through

1
2

ordinarily and you're looking at a bracketed

3

area or one that has the marks around it,

4

parentheses, that's usually an expression of a

5

negative; is that correct?

6

MR. YOUNG:

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

MR. YOUNG:

9

That is correct.
Okay.

And then just bear in mind that where --

where the -- where the main number represents

10

like a revenue or reimbursement, then the --

11

then that -- it's like a double negative on

12

the ...

13
14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And that's what I want to

make sure because that's my understanding.
Because when you read the description, I

15
16

would just -- or the average person would be

17

looking at this and it's expressed as a negative

18

but, in effect, it's really a positive; is that

19

correct?

20

MR. YOUNG:

Yes.

Yes.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

When I'm looking at Fringe

22

Benefit Reimbursements, also when I'm looking

23

now [G] under General Costs, that was a

24

decrease; is that correct?

25

MR. YOUNG:

That's correct.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

2

72 percent.

3

MR. YOUNG:

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

5

Because that went down

That's correct.
Okay.

I just want to make

sure.
And then, of course, Lease Cost, which

6
7

you eliminated entirely but, you know, that's

8

disappearing.
But I just wanted to make sure that in

9
10

my own mind I understood that it's squared with

11

the verbiage.

12

MR. YOUNG:

Yes.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

14

MR. YOUNG:

15

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Sure.
Thank you.
Ms. Anderson, questions at this time?

16
17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

CHAIR KANE:

No, thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla, questions?

19
20

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21

Thank you, Chair.

Regarding the Supplemental Transfers, in

22

regards to [D], on the Note [Dj, Solid Waste

23

Fund from the General Fund, we're looking at

24

3.7 million rather than 6.4 mill?

25

MR. YOUNG:

The 3.7 million actually is the increase.
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So if I refer to page 5-27 of the -- of

1

2

the -- I guess this is the program or detail

3

budget.

4

Solid Waste -- Supplemental Transfer Solid

5

Waste, in Fiscal Year 2006, the amount budgeted

6

was $2,695,220 and for Fiscal Year 2007, the

7

proposed budget has a request of 6,439,000.

8

difference of that is the 3.7 million that's

9

referenced there in Note [D].

10

5-27 for Countywide cost detail has for

The

For the Golf Fund it's 540,000, but that

11

represents the full -- the full request amount

12

because in Fiscal Year '06 there was no transfer

13

from Golf -- to Golf Fund.

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

Okay.

The other question that I have is in

16

regards to the Open Space Fund.

17

the -- on the Countywide cost details for '04,

18

'05,

19

'04 was 1.6;

'05, 1.3;

When I look at

'06, 1.6.

Do we expand all the dollars or is

20

the numbers carryover from -- was there a

21

balance, in other words, of unspent funds?

22

MR. YOUNG:

is

Well, that fund, apparently, is

23

revolving.

I don't know what the current status

24

is from my recollection, whether or not there's

25

remaining funds.
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I know there's been -- in this fiscal

1
2

year there has been a number of land

3

acquisitions that have hit this fund but I'm

4

not -- I couldn't say if it's fully expended.
Perhaps Mr. Yoshimi can --

5
6

MR. YOSHIMI:

This year about a million dollars has

7

been spent for that Muolea Point in conjunction

S

with the $2 million grant that we got.

9
10

And other than that, I think the year
before we purchased the Waihee property.

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12

into a account?

13

MR. YOSHIMI:

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

MR. YOSHIMI:

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

MR. YOSHIMI:

IS
19

It stays in its revolving fund.
Stays as a revolving fund?

Yes.
Okay.

So whatever this year addition is just

going to add to that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

20
21

So all unspent funds goes

Okay.

Good.

Thank you.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.

22

Mr. Molina, any questions at this time?

23

Mr. Mateo, questions at this time?

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, yeah, thank you.

Mr. Young, if you can again just clarify
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1

for me.

2

under General Costs the reference to

3

4

CHAIR KANE:

This would be in terms of general

Excuse me, Mr. Mateo, if you can use

your microphone.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Yeah.

I know your voice is -Thank you.

Yeah.

Thank you.
Under Salary Adjustments, I

8

believe because there's no ongoing collective

9

bargaining at this particular point, you

10

referenced a million dollars as

11

contingency.
Contingency to what or for what?

12

13

as a

MR. YOUNG:

Contingency in the sense that I was just

14

afraid to blank the whole thing out and -- and

15

a -- and not -- not have anything yet prepared

16

in case something was to come up.

17

But, you know, that's at the Council's

18

discretion.

19

had but it was just at the -- we did confirm

20

with DPS that they don't believe that there's

21

any -- there'd be any salary requirements for

22

collective bargaining before the end of Fiscal

23

Year 2007.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Maybe you have more courage than I

Thank you, Chair.

Which item is this specifically so we
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1
2

can make the reference?
MR. YOUNG:

On my handout it's in General Costs,

3

which is noted as Note [Gj, but on page 5-28 of

4

the -- of the Countywide Cost Detail, it is Item

5

No. 907790 under the General Cost category.

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

MR. YOUNG:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9
10

Under the '07 request $1 million.
Yes.
Thank you.
Okay.

I have a few questions, Members,

if I may.
First the -- regarding the Emergency

11
12

Fund, Mr. Young, have the bond raters given you

13

folks any indication of what an optimal dollar

14

amount would be in that fund for us and for them

15

for their consideration?

16
17

MR. YOUNG:

They haven't given a fixed dollar amount.
What they

what they do look for is

18

that there is movement so that this Emergency

19

Fund reaches somewhere between 5 to 10 percent

20

of our operating expense -- annual operating

21

expenditures.

22

on the high side.

23

So 10 percent would probably be

There is no -- there is no magic number

24

that they think we're going to get to.

What

25

they -- you know, we have reassured them that as
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1

this Emergency Fund grows, it will be available

2

should some catastrophic event occurs.
And for that reason, they -- different

3

4

rating agencies have expressed different

5

opinions in terms of what optimal would be but

6

it is in that 5 to 10 percent range.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Can you convert that with some quick

8

head math there as far as a range between 5 and

9

10 percent?

What would that represent for this

10

fiscal year, anyway, based on our operating

11

budget?

12

MR. YOUNG:

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

MR. YOUNG:

15

Are we looking at the 467 number or -It will be operating less Capital

Improvement Projects.

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

MR. YOUNG:

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

Operating budget of -- let's see.

Okay.
363.

So 363.
So

okay.

So somewhere --

Twenty-four to 30

all right.

Eighteen to $36 million?

20

MR. YOUNG:

21

CHAIR KANE:

Correct.
Okay.

Thank you.

Members, that's just, again, the optimal

22
23

consideration and with the proposal we're up to

24

8 million with the proposal.

25

MR. YOUNG:

And just to make clear, the agencies are
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1

very impressed that the County of Maui would

2

create this fund,

3

realize that, you know, it's still only two

4

years in its creation.

first of all, and then they

So it's not that we have to reach that

5

6

amount in any certain time, it's just that we

7

are -- annually we are progressing to show proof

8

that we are moving forward.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Young.
And to dovetail off of that question, I

10
11

think the intent of creating the Emergency Fund

12

by the Council in '05 was to work towards

13

building this up where the public can see it

14

with the understanding that we would work

15

towards reducing carryover and savings and, yet,

16

it seems like we've been working in the opposite

17

direction with carryover and savings.

18

Can you help us understand what we can

19

do to achieve the original intent of lessening

20

carryover/savings and, you know, raising up

21

that -- that Emergency Fund?

22
23

MR. YOUNG:

Certainly, Mr. Chair.
I'm not -- I'm not aware of what the

24

reasons for creating the Emergency Fund were,

25

but to the extent that, yes, the aqencies are
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they like seeing the Emergency Fund as

1

very

2

much as they like seeing the Carryover Fund

3

balance staying at a certain level or

4

increasing.
How it's handled, whether or not the

5

6

Emergency Fund is, you know, one for one

7

replacement of carryover/savings, I wouldn't

8

I wouldn't be able to characterize it as that.

9

The fact that carryover/savings is

10

expected, the rating agencies also view

11

carryover/savings as being -- looking --

12

targeting a certain threshold percentage, as

13

well.

14

that, into their evaluation.

15

cannot say that it would be like a one for one

16

trade-off.

17

And the Emergency fund does feed into
But, again, I

And, you know, we've been fortunate that

18

in the last two years the bond agencies have

19

been able to see increases in the Emergency Fund

20

and carryover/savings, as well, for various

21

whatever the reasons may be.

22

And if there is a change in the

23

carryover/savings by diminishing it, it's good

24

that the Emergency Fund increases will offset

25

that carryover/savings.
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So your comments are very well taken and

1

2

I understand where you're going and I think the

3

bond agencies are also -- are of the same

4

opinion.

5

6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.
And the other point is that the taxpayer

7

is interested with this information, Members.

8

If you see both of them going up, from the

9

taxpayer perspective, they'd rather have that

10

money in their pocket so they can dispose of it

11

as they deem fit versus giving it to us and then

12

letting it sit.

13

Okay?

So, I mean, that was the intent.

And,

14

Members, if you recall in '05 budget when we

15

created that Emergency Fund, it was with the

16

intent of lessening that carryover because

17

that's something that we don't see until a year

18

later as far as understanding it really.

19

The other question has to do with

20

your -- your notes on Letter [I] for the

21

appropriations for the office lease space for

22

One Main Plaza.

23

you've stated that those are included in the

24

operational budgets.

25

You've zeroed that out but

Is there a total somewhere that we can
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1

have to understand what the current costs or the

2

projected costs for the '07 budget will be for

3

lease space and, specifically, One Main Plaza

4

and then probably going out beyond that, but

5

we'll get to that?

6
7

But I don't know if you have that
information available at this pOint.

8

MR. YOUNG:

9

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza, are you prepared to respond?

10

MR. GINOZA:

Yes, I am.

11

I believe Mr. Ginoza may have that.

In my summation of the departmental

12

budgets, there's about 711,000 included in the

13

budget for One Main Plaza.

14

CHAIR KANE:

15
16

Okay.
711,000 for projection for the year

of -- or budgeted, proposed budget, for '07?

17

MR. GINOZA:

That's correct.

18

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

19
20
21

Thank you.

Any further questions, Members, in this
area?
If you do have any additional questions

22

in this area, again, we'll do the standard --

23

well, pose your questions to staff, we'll pass

24

it on and we'll get responses as we can.

25

Thank you, Mr. Young.

Okay?

Why don't we go
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1

ahead and move on to the Real Property Tax

2

presentation.
Members, we anticipate about a 10-minute

3
4

presentation and I believe we have a handout

5

that's been given to us by Mr. Young.
Mr. Young, if you can identify the

6
7

handout and proceed with your presentation.
Thank you, Mr. Yoshimi.

8

9

MR. YOUNG:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I have a nine-page handout that was

10
11

provided to you.

12

Tax Revenue by Classification".

13

the Maui County Summary Fiscal Year 2006 versus

14

2007.

15

document, the Maui County Summary.

16

remaining eight pages I'm actually providing

17

I'll discuss them briefly but they're really

18

more for the members' benefits.

19

It's entitled "Real Property
The top page is

I'll only be speaking from the top
The other

For Real Property Taxes for Fiscal Year

20

2007, we have seen market increase in property

21

values in the market place and this has

22

correlated with an increase in assessed values

23

for Real Property Tax purposes.

24
25

At the current rate of Real Property
Taxes, those rates that exist in 2006, the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

157

BF 3/22/06

1

current assessed values would result in Real

2

Property Tax revenues of about 221 million.

3

This was determined by the Administration that

4

there was adequate room for tax relief in the

5

form of reduced tax rates and the Mayor is

6

proposing a reduction in tax rates in seven of

7

the ten categories.

8

Improved Residential, Apartment, Commercial,

9

Industrial and Agricultural, the Hotel/Resort

Those categories being

10

rate, and the Homeowner rate, with the Homeowner

11

rate being the primary beneficiary of the tax

12

reduction.

13

The rates that will be -- are proposed

14

as unchanged is that for Conservation, the Time

15

Share rate and the Unimproved Residential.

16

Graphically, what I depict on this Maui

17

County Summary in addition -- right below the

18

table is I'm showing on the left-hand pie chart

19

the assessed values of all properties in Maui

20

County for all property classifications.

21

the graph on the right of it shows the

22

correlated revenues by property classifications.

23

And

So as you can see if we start at the

24

12:00 o'clock position of the pie chart for both

25

sides, for example, we'll see Improved
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1

Residential where Improved Residential

2

classification accounts for 17 percent of all

3

the assessed values in the County and there is a

4

correlated based on the Mayor's proposed tax

5

rates that the correlated revenue from that

6

17 percent would be about 16 percent of the

7

entire revenue from Real Property Taxes.

8

you'll see the Apartment classification is a

9

match 12 for 12; Commercial properties, while

As

10

they account for 5 percent of the assessed

11

values will generate about 6 percent of the

12

revenues; Industrials, while they account for

13

3 percent of the assessed values will generate

14

approximately 4 percent of the revenue;

15

Agriculture, 10 to 9 respectively; Conservation

16

is a 1 percent to 1 percent match.

17

Then on the left-hand side of the -- of

18

both pie charts is where you see some

19

distinguishing numbers.

20

Hotel/Resort, although they only accommodate for

21

23 of the -- 23 percent of all assessed values,

22

they will generate 35 percent of all the

23

revenues from Real Property Taxes; Time Share

24

accounts for 2 percent of the assessed values

25

but will generate 5 percent of the revenue;

Where, for instance,
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1

Unimproved Residential is a 2 percent to 2

2

percent match; and the Homeowners, as I said

3

earlier, will be -- will by far, again, be the

4

beneficiary of this tax rate as that

5

classification has 25 percent of all the

6

assessed values in the County but will

7

accommodate or generate 10 percent of all the

8

Real Property Tax revenue.
These pie charts illustrate that there

9

where the distinction and the distribution

10

is

11

of Real Property Tax burden is placed within the

12

property classifications.

13

For the matrix that's provided at the

14

top part of that sheet, you'll see by each -- by

15

each property classification the proposed rate

16

in Fiscal Year 2007, that's in the middle

17

column, FY 2007 proposed rates.

18

column -- two columns on the left is the Fiscal

19

Year 2006 tax rates so you can see a comparison.

20

Now, in the Fiscal Year 2007 Net Taxable

And the

21

Value, that's a flash at the time that the

22

budget was constructed.

23

was about March 1st and so these net taxable

24

value amounts will undoubtedly change when

25

certification occurs in April.

The latest flash we had
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1

The tax rate as proposed in 2007 is how

2

the Fiscal 2007 estimated levy is determined by

3

simply taking the proposed rate per thousand

4

multiplied by the taxable value.

5

percentage change for each of the categories,

6

you can see where the -- when the Mayor earlier

7

referenced that the Homeowner tax rate was

S

reduced to a point where there's no

9

"out-of-pocket," what he's really referring to

And the

10

is that at the -- at the net taxable value

11

assessment, the rate is such that there should

12

be no change in terms of the revenue collection

13

from Homeowners classification.

14

to say that individual homeowners will see no

15

increase in their taxes as individual

16

circumstances may vary from property to

17

property.

IS

Now, that's not

And, lastly, towards the far end of the

19

chart is the property counts for each of the

20

categories.

21

category you see that there is a 1,00S new

22

properties in the Homeowners categories and that

23

relates to about 4.4 percent from Fiscal Year

24

2006 to 2007.

25

there was a net of 1,634 new properties across

So, for instance, in the Homeowners

Overall for the entire County
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1

all categories.

2

the bulk of that.

3

So the Homeowners account for

Now, the subsequent sheets that I

4

provided are -- they don't really relate to the

5

top sheet, but I did want to provide them to the

6

members because this is kind of an interesting

7

analysis that I know the individual members

8

would be interested in.

9

What I did here was Real Property Tax

10

Division look at revenues by district.

11

each of the -- we looked at each district and

12

then matched up the property classifications

13

within those districts.

14

districts are based on tax map key districts and

15

not necessarily Council districts.

16

if there's a distinction but it's based on tax

17

map districts.

IS

So for

Bear in mind that these

I don't know

So you can see the -- the graphs that

19

are provided are the same as the graphs on the

20

top summary sheet and depict the correlation or

21

comparison between property classes by assessed

22

value versus the revenue collection within each

23

district.

24
25

And with that, Mr. Chair, I would -- I
was able during the lunch break to work with
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1

Real Property Tax to quickly run some numbers to

2

respond to Ms. Anderson's questions that she had

3

prior to the break and I can discuss that now or

4

if you would like to -- or if you would like to

5

entertain questions from the members on the

6

graphical main part of the presentation for Real

7

Property Tax.
Your discretion, Mr. Chair.

8
9

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Members, without objection I'd like to

10
11

close the loop on the previous question that was

12

posed by Member Anderson to the Director.
So we'll go ahead and wrap -- I'm sorry.

13
14

Was it Member Anderson or Member Johnson?
I think it was Member Anderson, you

15
16

posed the question.
So why don't we go ahead and respond to

17

18

that information and then we'll move forward

19

with the presentation's Q&A.

20
21

MR. YOUNG:

Okay.

Very well, Mr. Chair.

I'm referring to the single-page handout

22

that's entitled "Selected Statistics of Real

23

Property Tax for Fiscal Year '07, Budget

24

Proposal Deliberations".

25

What we did was Ms. Anderson had a
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1

question about the number of appeals that were

2

filed.

3

and take a look historically to see what type of

4

trends, so these numbers represent what they

5

were able to find during our lunch hour.

6

So I did ask Real Property Tax to try

For Fiscal Year 2006, that's the current

7

year we're in, there were 559 appeals filed.

8

And my understanding from the Real Property Tax

9

Division is that the vast majority of those have

10

been either processed or decided upon.

And of

11

those that have been adjudicated before the

12

Board, 223 appeals were denied.

13

appeals that are essentially heard before the

14

Board and they upheld the value established by

15

the County and that relates to about

16

39.9 percent.

17

remaining numbers are the numbers that you could

18

safely assume were found in the -- on the side

19

of the taxpayer, in the favor of the taxpayer.

20

So the taxes in dispute line shows the

Those are the

It is a safe assumption that the

21

dollar value that's in dispute and this would be

22

the value that the County has assessed versus

23

what the value the taxpayer alleges.

24

that's -- in Fiscal Year 2006, it's 1,206,000.

25

Then of those that are found in the taxpayer's

And
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1

favor, that's the amount disputed tax is

2

refunded, the overall amount that has been

3

refunded to the taxpayer.
So I -- the Real Property Tax Division

4

5

is showing this going back to Fiscal Year 2000,

6

and you can -- you can see that there -- there's

7

somewhat of a trend.

8

instance, it was 330 appeals filed and then

9

in -- the next subsequent three years it's up

I mean, in 2000, for

10

about 500, and then for the last two years it's

11

been under 400 and now it's back up to 500.
And the top three lines on this same

12
13

schedule, I also wanted to include in there the

14

property parcel count, as well as the Circuit

15

Breaker -- how the Circuit Breaker has been

16

fairing over that same period of time.

17

what is the applicable Circuit Breaker Credit

18

value.

19

And then

So as you can see, Fiscal Year 2004 was

20

the lowest point for Circuit Breaker enrollment.

21

And, if you recall, the Department of Finance

22

has -- had started back in 2003 and 2004 to

23

undergo extensive educational campaign or

24

getting the word out through advertisement and

25

holding community sessions.

And I think we're
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1

now seeing the payoff of that because, as you

2

can see in Fiscal Year 2005 as well as in 2006,

3

that number for Circuit Breaker enrollment has

4

dramatically increased.

5

these are only the number of Circuit Breaker

6

Credits that were actually awarded, not the

7

number of applications.

8

applications are about twice as much.

9

And, bear in mind,

The number of

So with that, Mr. Chair, I'll also

10

mention that Mr. Lance Okumura, the Real

11

Property Tax Administrator, is also here and can

12

also provide further answers to any questions

13

you or the members may have.

14

CHAIR KANE:

17

Thank you, Mr. Young.

Ms. Anderson, any follow-up on your

15
16

Okay.

request earlier?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

Yes.

Thank you, Chair.

You know, I didn't get a copy of what he

19

was just discussing.

20

could follow him.

21

I borrowed Jo Anne's so I

If staff has another copy, that would be

22

great.

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

CHAIR KANE:

We'll get that to you.
Thank you.

No problem.
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I think it was distributed on the desk

1
2

so --

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah.

It's not here, though.

We'll get another one for you.
Thank you.

6

Thanks, Jo Anne.

7

I just have a few questions for clarity

8

on this chart that we just got, if I may,

9

Mr. Chair.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Please.

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So I'm going to start from

12

the top and go down.

13

Property Parcel Count, you have no parcel counts

14

for '04,

15

for that?

16

MR. YOUNG:

Where you've got Real

'OS, and '06.

Can you give me a reason

Well, it was just not available when they

17

ran it and I got the numbers

18

hour and 15 minutes to prepare this so I just

19

quickly through it together so that's why it's

20

not quite as sexy looking but I just N/A'd it

21

because, you know, I just didn't -- we just --

22
23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I had about an

You didn't have it readily

available?
MR. YOUNG:

Yeah.
But actually the

for Fiscal Year

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

167

BF 3/22/06

1

2006, if you refer to the other handout that I

2

had, there is a parcel count -- there is a

3

parcel count there.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

referencing?

6
7

MR. YOUNG:

The nine-page handout that's entitled

Real Property Tax Revenue by Classification.

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

MR. YOUNG:

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

MR. YOUNG:

Yep.

So if -- it's the fourth column from the

far right, FY 2006 Class Count.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

parcel count?

15

Okay.

The Maui County Summary.

10

12

What other handout are you

MR. YOUNG:

Correct.

16

"Class Count" is the same as

Yes.

So if you look at the very bottom, the

17

very bottom row is the summation of each of

18

those classes and it's 62,537 in Fiscal Year

19

2006.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

MR. YOUNG:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So how come it's gone down?

I
I mean, if we had 63,783

23

parcels in 2003, how can we only have 62,537

24

three years later?

25

MR. YOUNG:

I--
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

MR. YOUNG:

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Don't know?

I don't know.
That seems very odd that

4

there's that many consolidations every

5

subdivision?

6

MR. YOUNG:

I would be speculating that it could be

7

consolidations, if they're not other reasons.

8

These are just the numbers as they run out of

9

system so

10
11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

We'll check on

that.

12
13

Thanks.

And then you have
CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Anderson, I'm sorry.
Mr. Young, is Mr. Okumura able to

14
15

provide additional information on that

16

particular question before we move on,

17

Ms. Anderson.

18

MR. OKUMURA:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

MR. OKUMURA:

Mr. Chair.
If you're prepared, Mr. Okumura.
The change in count would be a lot of

21

times consolidations.

22

consolidate parcels before they subdivide and

23

before, you know, the count was made prior to

24

them subdividing it into those individual lots.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Developers usually

You have a date certain for
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1

the count?

2

MR. YOUNG:

3

MR. OKUMURA:

4
5

As of?
As of April 19th, the certification

date.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I appreciate that

6

explanation but I think it's got to be more than

7

that.
I mean, I don't -- because, yeah, they

8

9

will consolidate but then they re-subdivide.

10

It's usually done in one application so -- but,

11

anyway, thank you, Mr. Okumura, for that

12

explanation.

13

So then is it safe to say that half

14

because you said the Circuit Breaker households

15

only reveal half of the applications.
So does that mean it's safe to say

16
17

50 percent of them are denied the Circuit

18

Breaker?

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

MR. YOUNG:

21

Mr. Young.
Yeah.
They're either -- they don't qualify for

22

whatever reasons or, you know, their adjusted

23

gross -- 3 percent of their adjusted gross

24

income is actually, you know, more than their

25

tax bill, you know, for whatever reason.
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We don't restrict anyone from applying.

1

2

We take all applications and then it's

3

determined afterwards whether or not the numbers

4

work out where they qualify for the credit.
So, for myself, as the Director, I like

5

6

to see high applications submitted because it,

7

you know, it shows that, you know, our staff is

8

providing that educational basis.

9

ultimately for your deliberations, I know you'll

But

10

be focused on how many credits are actually

11

awarded.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so can you give me,

13

again, a more specific reasons why they would

14

not qualify?

15
16

MR. YOUNG:

Sure.
If they're

in order to qualify for

17

the Circuit Breaker Credit, you must, one, be

18

owner/occupant.

19

not owner/occupant will file or people will file

20

for their -- not their primary residence and

21

by -- under the Code, that's not permitted or

22

their adjusted gross income -- right now the

23

Circuit Breaker, if your adjusted gross income,

24

which is 3 percent of your adjusted gross

25

income, if that is less than your Real Property

So on occasions people who are
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1

Tax bill, you receive a credit of the difference

2

between the two.

3

regardless of what their adjusted gross income

4

and if their adjusted gross

5

their adjusted gross income is more than their

6

tax bill, then they do not receive a credit.

7

It's only if 3 percent of your adjusted gross

8

income is less than your tax bill.

But people can apply

if 3 percent of

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

10

simple qualifiers.

11

people don't still understand when they're

12

applying that they would qualify?

13

taking a shot at it or --

14
15
16

MR. YOUNG:

So, I mean, those are very
Does that indicate that

Are they just

Well, I mean, staff would probably know

better.
But, also, because the credit -- we

17

cannot determine really the amount of the credit

18

until the -- your tax bill for this year is

19

determined, right?

20

So the people should be applying because

21

if they are on the cusp or on the verge,

22

depending on what the tax rate is may

23

determine

24

instance.

25

it may swing the other way,

for

So everybody can apply and that's why
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1

we -- we like to see high application counts

2

because everybody -- you know, they mayor may

3

not know the situation and we -- when we do

4

these educational campaigns out to the

5

community, every year there's more and more

6

people attending so we hit more and more people

7

and so we always encourage them to submit

8

applications.

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

10

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Young.

Then, you know, you're listing the

11

number of appeals that were denied as

12

40 percent.

13

appeals were granted?

14

MR. YOUNG:

So does that mean 60 percent of the

My understanding from Real Property

15

Tax -- I may have to defer to Mr. Okumura on

16

this -- but my understanding from Real Property

17

Tax is that's a good, safe assumption.

18
19
20
21

Perhaps Mr. Okumura can expound.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And these were assessment

appeals, right?
MR. YOUNG:

Assessment appeals, correct.

22

Oh -- oh, okay.

23

So Mr. Okumura has clarified that the

24

amount denied -- yeah.

The amount -- the amount

25

that is not reflected in the denied

the other
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1

60 percent, for instance, that you referenced,

2

does also include stipulation agreements, which

3

are not necessarily where the taxpayers want but

4

it's where the County has essentially stipulated

5

to some agreed upon arrangement.

6
7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
kind of thing?

8

MR. YOUNG:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

10
11

Like a settlement agreement

Yes.

Tantamount to a settlement.
And that means that would

happen before it went to the Appeals Board?
MR. YOUNG:

Or it could have gone to the Appeals

12

Board but it means that it has happened before

13

the Appeals Board has ruled

14

adjudicated, made a final judicial decision

15

tantamount to -- so this amount here, this

16

appeals denied amount, is just a flat outright

17

denial by the Board.

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

like,

So there's no -- I mean, I

19

kind of want the other information, not who was

20

denied but who was actually granted an

21

adjustment in their assessment.

22

I'm trying to see how much of an adjustment did

23

you have to make to the assessments that were on

24

the tax rolls.

25

MR. YOUNG:

Not "who" but

Yes.
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And that's why I tried to get there.

1
2

Again, this is limited information that we had

3

to pull in about an hour.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

MR. YOUNG:

I understand.

I tried to get there by giving you some

6

indications through the last two lines, which is

7

the taxes in dispute, which represents the

8

amount that cumulatively of everybody who filed

9

an appeal, cumulatively of how much is in

10

dispute and how much was actually

11

had to actually refund.

12

the County

So this -- the last line, disputed taxes

13

refund -- is refunded, is the amount that the

14

County actually had to refund for whatever

15

reasons -- stipulations, settlements, you know,

16

awards from the Appeals Board, et cetera.

17
18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Do you keep any record of

adjusted assessments?

19

MR. YOUNG:

Yes.

Yes.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

MR. YOUNG:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Could we get a copy of that?

For all properties or
Well, whatever record you

23

have of it unless it's, you know, hundreds of

24

pages.

25

MR. YOUNG:

Certainly, Ms. Anderson, we'll take a
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1

look at what we can provide out of the system.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay, Staff, can you take note.

Yeah.

Thank you, Mr. Young.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

5

6

Thank you very much.

CHAIR KANE:

7

Okay.

Thank you.

Members, any questions in this area just

8

to bring closure to this handout that Mr. Young

9

has provided for the Committee?

10
11

Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

Just one question under the timed --

12
13

proposed Time Share rate.

If memory serves me

14

correct, during the last term, the

15

Administration had proposed, I think, roughly

16

somewhere in the area of maybe about 20, $21 as

17

a proposed rate for Time Shares.

18

Can you ask [sic] me why, for lack of a

19

better term, the change in philosophy, I guess,

20

because Time Shares have been discussed as

21

having a lot of impact on the community and I

22

believe the Council came up with the rate of $14

23

and why the, I guess, the intent to keep it flat

24

at $14?

25

MR. YOUNG:

Yes, Mr. Molina.
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The Administration last year at the

1

2

inaugural year for that Time Share rate proposed

3

that the rate should be $16.

4

The $21 amount that you provided was --

5

you know, in some of our discussion analysis, we

6

did evaluate that potentially it could be as

7

much as 21 if you looked at it in comparison

8

from

9

was proposed to be 16.

10

to the TAT contribution of hotels but it
Council did agree on 14.

It remains unchanged this year in the

11

Mayor's proposal largely in part because if we

12

take a look at the, again, this matrix that I

13

provided.

14

Maui -- for Maui County, even with the rate

15

staying the same, assessed valuations for those

16

types of parcels are going to result in a

17

53 percent increase in Real Property Tax revenue

18

take.

19

For that Time Share rate for the

This is due in large part to, one -- for

20

a number of reasons but, one, increase in, you

21

know, property values, definitely.

22

as a result of parcel change.

23

there's 318 new time share parcels that are

24

recorded from year over year and this is going

25

to further add to the increase revenue taken

But, also,

You can see that
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this classification.

2

So philosophically the Mayor has felt

3

that leaving the rate at $14 was adequate and

4

reasonable given the increase in the assessed

5

values; however, I will tell you that in the

6

deliberations with the Budget Director, myself,

7

and the Mayor on this subject, we did evaluate

8

and consider whether or not to, you know, lower

9

this rate or increase this rate but ultimately

10

recognized that going either way would impact

11

our abilities to offer rate cuts in the other

12

classifications, which we, you know,

13

like to classify as primary -- the No. 1 focus,

14

again, was Homeowners and the Residential

15

rates -- Apartments and Improved Residential.

16

So it's proposed to be left the same out of

17

deference to the increase in the assessed

18

values.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22
23
24
25

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

20
21

Okay.

I would

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Molina.

Any further questions, Members?
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

Mr. Young, on this summary that you
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previously had gone over, Improved Residential

2

shows a decrease by 255 "units" I'm assuming.

3

What would you attribute that to?
I mean, are that many people who had

4

5

investment property have moved into it and

6

become owner occupied or what's the reason?

7

MR. YOUNG:

Without being the technical operational

8

guru on it, I would suspect upon initial -- in

9

looking at this that these are properties that

10

were previously Improved Residential, so they

11

could have been rental properties or investment

12

properties, and now they are owned by them, an

13

occupant.

14

So there's probably some migration in

15

large part from Improved Residential category

16

down to the Homeowner category, unless

17

Mr. Okumura has some other -- no.

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah.

And so the only way that you

19

would be able to indicate this change is when

20

someone sends in, I guess, a change in address

21

for their property tax bill or -- is that how

22

that's

23

MR. YOUNG:

When they file -- everybody in the

24

Homeowner category has to file for that

25

category, right?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

MR. YOUNG:

Right.

So, you know, the number of homeowner

3

exceptions that we got is representative of this

4

count change.

5

for homeowners' exemption this year.

6

So we did get 1,008 applications

So, you know, whether or not a

7

particular parcel, I couldn't tell you by

8

looking at the numbers that, you know, a

9

particular parcel has any reason that they'd be

10

Improved Residential and now Homeowners, except

11

that, you know, that's what I would suspect that

12

that is occurring.

13

So the same thing could be said for --

14

you know, there might be some migration in the

15

Apartment category, for instance, that is not

16

reflected in this net change where you could

17

have had it gone either way, too.

18

some homeowner -- homeowner -- previous

19

homeowner properties that may have migrated over

20

to Improved Residential, Apartment, as well.

21

You know, it may go both ways.

22

is as reflected of that net result.

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

There may be

The count change

So the increase count in

24

Homeowner could not necessarily be 1,008 new

25

units but it would also reflect the change --
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the decrease from Improved Residential?

2

MR. YOUNG:

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

4

5

Correct.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
Any further questions, Members, on the

7

presentation on the Real Property Tax by the

8

Director of Finance?

9

Hearing none.

10

Members, the Chair has scheduled this as

11

our final item for this afternoon so a couple of

12

things for housekeeping measures.

13

again, the meeting for tonight is at the

14

Upcountry -- which is the Upcountry district

15

meeting -- the Pukalani-Kula-Ulupalakua District

16

is 6:00 p.m. at the Mayor Hannibal Tavares

17

Community Center.

18

Members,

As a note, then, I will repeat this

19

every day until we've exhausted it.

20

district meetings for peoples' information:

21

tomorrow March 23rd,

22

Paia Community Center, social hall, and that's

23

for Makawao-Haiku-Paia District; on Tuesday,

24

March 28th, at 6:00 p.m., we will be at the

25

Kihei Community Center, Main Hall, this is for

The other
For

6:00 p.m., will be at the
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the South Maui District; for Wednesday,

2

March 29th, at 6:00 p.m., we will be out in West

3

Maui, the Lahaina Civic Center, Social Hall,

4

this will be the West Maui District; on

5

Thursday, March 30th, at 6:00 p.m., we will be

6

at the Helene Hall at the East Maui District for

7

the Hana-Keanae-Kailua; on Monday, April 3rd, we

8

will be at 6:30 p.m., the Kahului Community

9

Center, main hall, and this is the meeting for

10

the Wailuku-Waiheeu-Waikapu and Kahului

11

Districts; on Tuesday, April 4th, at 6:00 p.m.,

12

we will be at the Mitchell Pauole Center, the

13

main hall, Molokai District; and on Thursday,

14

April 6th, at 6:00 p.m., we will be at the Lanai

15

Community Center, social hall, in the Lanai

16

District, and then we will also have the public

17

hearing, which will take place right here in

18

this Chamber, which is the formal public hearing

19

for the community to air their comments

20

regarding the budget proposal from the Mayor's

21

office.

22

Members, tomorrow's meeting starts at

23

9:00 o'clock and we will be on the EP expansion

24

position specifically for Fire, Prosecutors,

25

Corporation Counsel, Civil Defense.

Probably
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the biggest one will be Finance, so I know

2

Mr. Young will be prepared, as well as the

3

Housing department.
So, Members, again, EP counts for those

4

5

departments will be discussed tomorrow morning

6

at 9:00 a.m. and I respectively ask that all

7

members be prompt in their attendance tomorrow

8

morning and throughout the rest of the meetings.
With that, any final comment from the

9

10

Director -- Budget Director, Mr. Ginoza, or from

11

the Finance Director, Mr. Young?

12

MR. GINOZA:

None from me, Chairman.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Young.

14

MR. YOUNG:

15
16

Thank you, Mr. Chair, no further

comments.
CHAIR KANE:

17

Okay.
Members, any questions or comments

18

before we adjourn this meeting for this

19

afternoon?

20

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.

(Excused:

21

ACTION:

22

23
24
25

RC, GH, DM, and CT)
DEFER pending further

discussion.

CHAIR KANE:

Hearing none.
Members, this meeting for March 22nd is
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1

2

adjourned.
ADJOURN:

(Gavel) .

2:40 p.m.
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA

2
3

SS.
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

4

5
6
7

I, Amy R. Neyhart, a certified shorthand reporter
for the State of California, do hereby certify:
That the foregoing audiotaped proceeding was

8

transcribed by me to the best of my ability; that the

9

foregoing is a true record of the testimony and

10
11

proceedings taken at that time.
I further certify that I am a disinterested

12

person and that I am in no way interested in the outcome

13

of said action.

14
15

In witness whereof, I have subscribed my name and
affixed my seal this

~O-iJol day ofA91~

\
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25
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